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General Business 

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 

CHAPTER XVII- Listing of Commercial Paper 
[See Chapter VI of SEBI NCS Regulations, 2021] 

 
A. An issuer who desires to list CP shall forward an application for listing along with following disclosures to 

the concerned stock exchange(s) 
 

Disclosures to be provided along with the application for listing: 

 

1. Issuer details: 
 
1.1 Details of the issuer: 
 

(i) Name - CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Limited (CNHICI) 
 
Registered Office Address - 4th Floor Rectangle No.1 Behind Marriot Hotel, Commercial Complex D4, 

Saket, South Delhi 110017, New Delhi 

Corporate Office Address: 4th Floor, Plot No. 14A, Sector – 18, ATC Building, Maruti Industrial Complex, 

Gurugram-122015 Haryana 

CIN - U65999DL2017PTC325228 

PAN – AAHCC2506R 

Line of business – Non-public deposit accepting Non-banking financial institution  

 

The CNHI group incorporated CNHICI, a wholly owned subsidiary of CNHI, on 23 October 2017 to function 

as the captive finance company of the CNH Industrial group in India. CNHICI obtained non-deposit taking 

non-banking financial company license from the Reserve Bank of India on 2 April 2018. 

 

CNHI Capital is a wholly owned subsidiary of CNHI India, which in turn, is indirectly wholly owned by CNH 

Industrial. The NBFC finances to dealers and customers of CNHI India and Case NHC’s construction 

equipment business. CNHI India has been present in India since 1992 and is primarily involved in 

manufacturing agricultural equipment, such as tractors and farm mechanisation solutions, such as 

pneumatic planters, boom sprayers, mowers, rotavators, balers and rakes with strong profitable record. 

Case NHC has been present in India since 1998 and manufactures construction equipment, including 

compactors and loader backhoe with a strong profitable track record. 

 

Chief Executive (Managing Director / President/ CEO / CFO): Mr. Vishal Chaudhury 

Group affiliation (if any): CNH Industrial N.V. Group 

 

1.2       Details of the directors: 
 

Name, designation 
and DIN 

Age Address Director 
since 

List of other 
directorships 

Mr. Vishal 
Chaudhury, 
Managing Director 
DIN 09463209 

 

49 689, Fifth Floor, Block No. D-
66, Penta VIP Tower, VIP 
Road, Zirakpur SAS Nagar, 
Mohali, Punjab 140603 

  27/01/2022 
 

- 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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General Business 

Mr. Daniel James 
Mctaggart, Director  
DIN 07926746 
 

63 12, Fiddlewood Grove, 
Menai NSW, Australia-
2234 

23/10/2017 
 

CNH industrial Capital 
Australia Pty Ltd;  
 
CNH Industrial Capital 
Russia LLC,  
Iveco Capital Russia LLC,  
 
CNH Industrial Capital 
(Shanghai) Commercial 
Factoring Co. Limited 
 

Mr. Magneshwar 
Prasad Singh, 
Director 

  DIN 08241412 
 

49 18, Rosewood Avenue, 
Prestons, Sydney, New 
South Wales, Australia-
2170 

26/06/2019 
 

- 

Mr. Narinder Mittal 
Director 
DIN 07382202 

51 90G, Sector 7, Jasola Vihar, 
New Friends Colony, South 
Delhi -110025 

10/02/2023 CNH Industrial (India) 
Private Limited 
 

Mr. Pankaj Gupta 
Additional Director 
DIN 10432477 
 

42 R/o A9-703, Tulip White, 
Sector 69, Badshahpur, 
Gurgaon 122101, Haryana, 
India 

31/01/2024 - 

 
1.3      Details of change in directors in last three financial years including any change in the current year: 

 

Name, 
designation and DIN 

Date of appointment/ 
resignation 

Date of cessation 
(in case of resignation) 

Remarks (viz. 
reasons for change etc) 

Mr. Amit Kakkar 
Managing Director 
DIN 08254518 

19/02/2019 10/09/2021 Resignation 

Mr. Magneshwar Prasad 
Singh, Director 
DIN 08241412 
 

26/06/2019 
 

- Appointment 

Mr. Vishal Chaudhury,  
Managing Director  
DIN 09463209 
 

  
27/01/2022 

 

- Appointment 

Mr. Raunak Varma, 
Director, 
DIN 07234008 

23/10/2017 31/01/2023 Resignation 

Mr. Narinder Mittal 
Director 
DIN 07382202 

28/09/2023 - Appointment 

Mr. Pankaj Gupta 
Additional Director 
DIN 10432477 
 

31/01/2024 - Appointment 

 
 
 
 
 

 

https://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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General Business 

 
1.4       List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the company as on date or the latest quarter end: 

 

S. No Name and category of 
shareholder 

Total no. of 
equity shares 

No of shares in 
demat form 

Total shareholding as % 
of total no. of equity 
shares 

 01 CNH Industrial (India) Private 
Limited 

39,71,99,999  -  100% 

 02 Case New Holland 
Construction Equipment 
(India) Private Limited 
 
(Nomine Shareholder of CNH 
Industrial (India)  
Private Limited) 

 01  -  - 

       

1.5 Details of the statutory auditor: 
 

 Name and address Date of appointment  Remarks 

M/s S S Kothari Mehta & Co. 
LLP, Plot No. 68, Okhla, 
Industrial Area, Phase – III, 
New Delhi - 110020 

 September 30, 2021 Appointed for a period of three years until 
the conclusion of the Seventh Annual 
General Meeting of the Company (FY: 2021-
22 to 2023-24) 

 
1.6 Details of the change in statutory auditors in last three financial years including any change in the current 

year: NO CHANGE IN STATUTORY AUDITORS IN LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS. 
 

Name, address Date of appointment/ 
resignation 

Date of cessation 
(in case of 
resignation) 

Remarks (viz. reasons for 
change etc) 

    

 
1.7 List of top 10 debt securities holders (as on 30th June 2024): 

 

S. No. Name of 
holder 

Category Face value Holding of debt securities as a 
percentage of total debt securities 
outstanding of the 
issuer 

NOT APPLICABLE 

 
1.8 List of top 10 CP holders (as on June 30, 2024): 

 

 
S. No. 

 
Name of CP 
holder 

Category of CP 
holder 

Face value of CP 
holding 

CP holding percentage as a percentage 
of total CP outstanding of the issuer 

1 Yes Bank Ltd.  Bank INR 50 Crore 100% 
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General Business 

2. Material Information: 
 

2.1  Details of all default/s and/or delay in payments of interest and principal of CPs, (including 
technical delay), debt securities, term loans, external commercial borrowings and other 
financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee issued in the past 5 financial years 
including in the current financial year:-  
 
No defaults and/or delays in payments 
 

2.2 Ongoing and/or outstanding material litigation and regulatory strictures, if any.:- No Significant 
or Material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunal or any outstanding material 
litigation as on date. 
 

No ongoing/outstanding material litigation and regulatory strictures. 

 
2.3 Any material event/ development having implications on the financials/credit quality including 

any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting in 
material liabilities, corporate restructuring event which may affect the issue or the investor’s 
decision to invest / continue to invest in the CP:-  
 
The Issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change on 
the financials/credit quality (eg. Any material regulatory proceedings against 
Issuers/promoters. Tax litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring 
events etc) at the time of issue, which may affect the Issue or the Investors decision to 
invest/continue to invest in the CP. 
 

3. Details of borrowings of the company, as on the latest quarter end (June 30, 2024): 
 

3.1  Details of debt securities and CPs: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Series ISIN Tenor/ 
Period 
of 
maturi
ty 

 
Coupon 

Amount 
issued 

Date of 
allotmen
t 

Redempti
on date/ 
Schedule 

Credit 
rating 

Secured/  
Unsecured 

Security Other Details viz. 
Details of IPA, 
Details of CRA 

Commer
cial 
Paper 

INE0P4D
14051 

 88 
Days 

7.68% INR 50 
Crore 

28-June-
24 

24-Sept-
24 

CRISIL A1+ 
and   IND 
A1+ 

Unsecured NA IPA-  HDFC Bank Ltd., 
Treasury Operations, 
Lodha I Think 
Techno Campus, 4th 
Floor, Near Kanjur 
Marg Railway 
Station, Kanjur Marg 
(East), Mumbai – 
400042 
 
Credit Ratings -  
Crisil Ratings  And  
India Ratings and 
Research (Ind-Ra) 
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General Business 

3.2  Details of secured/ unsecured loan facilities/ bank fund-based facilities/ rest of the borrowing, if 
any, including hybrid debt like foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCB), optionally convertible 
debentures / preference shares from banks or financial institutions or financial creditors, as on last 
quarter end: 

 
Table A: Details of loan facilities, bank fund based facilities, other borrowings, etc 
 

a) Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities as on June 30, 2024  
 

Lender’ s Name/ 
Name of the 

Bank 

Nature of facility/ 
instrument 

Amount 
sanctio
ned (In 
Crore) 

Principal 
Amount 

outstandin
g (In Crore) 

Repayment 
date / schedule 

Security, if 
applicable 

Credit 
rating, if 
applicabl

e 

Asset 
classifica

tion 

 
Bank of America 

N.A. 
Short Term Facility 268.50 212.00 

 
Tenor upto 1 

year 
Unsecured NA Standard  

Term Loan Facility 344.80 239.60 
 

Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

DBS Bank India 
Limited 

Term Loan Facility 500.00 13.80 Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

Sumitomo Mitsui 
Banking 

Corporation 

Short Term Facility 70.00 - Tenor upto 6 
months 

Unsecured NA Standard  

Term Loan Facility 210.00 - Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

Credit Agricole 
Corporate and 

Investment Bank 

Short Term Facility 80.00 80.00 Tenor upto 6 
months 

Unsecured NA Standard  

Term Loan Facility 220.00 20.00 Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

HDFC Bank Ltd Term Loan Facility 300.00 24.10 Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

MUFG Bank Term Loan Facility 336.00 - Tenor upto 3 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

The Hongkong 
and Shanghai 

Banking 
Corporation 

Limited 

Term Loan Facility 140.00 12.00 Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard 

 

Citi Bank N.A. Short Term Facility 315.00 80.00 Upto 1 Year Unsecured NA Standard  

Axis Bank Term Loan Facility 440.00 298.11 Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

ICICI Bank 
Limited 

Term Loan Facility 225.00 79.10 Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard  

Standard 
Chartered Bank 

Term Loan Facility 130.00 116.25 Tenor upto 4 
year 

Unsecured NA Standard 
 

Total 
  

1174.96 
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General Business 

b)   Details of other Borrowings as on 30th June, 2024:- 
 

Lender’ 
s 

Name/ 
Name 
of the 
Bank 

Nature of 
facility/ 
instrument 

Amount 
sanctioned  

Principal 
Amount 
outstanding 

Repayment 
date / 
schedule 

Security, 
if 
applicable 

Credit 
rating, if 
applicable 

Asset 
classification 

 
NIL  

 
3.3  The amount of corporate guarantee or letter of comfort issued by the issuer along with name of 

the counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group company, etc) on behalf of whom it 
has been issued, contingent liability including debt service reserve account (DSRA) guarantees/ any 
put option etc. 

 
The Issuer hereby declares that it has not issued any sort of corporate guarantee ot letter of 

comfort in favor of anyone 
 

4. Issue Information: 
 

4.1   Details of current tranche including ISIN, amount, date of issue, maturity, all credit ratings including 
unaccepted ratings, date of rating, name of credit rating agency, its validity period (details of credit 
rating letter issued not older than one month on the date of opening of the issue), details of issuing 
and paying agent and other conditions, if any. 

 

Particulars Details 

ISIN INE0P4D14069 

Amount of Issue in 
Face Value (INR) 

INR 50 Crore (Rupees Fifty Crore only) 

Date of Issue  July 15, 2024 

Date of Maturity  October 14, 2024 

all credit ratings, 
Date of Rating, 
name of credit 
rating agency, 
Validity 

Credit Rating 
Agency 

Date of 
Rating 

Credit Rating Validity 

CRISIL 
Ratings 

June 25, 
2024 

A1+ 1 
year 

India 
Rating 

June 25, 
2024 

A1+ 1 
year 

 

Issuing and Paying 
Agent 

HDFC Bank Limited 

Other Conditions Nil 

 
4.2 CP borrowing limit, supporting board resolution for CP borrowing, details of CP issued during the 

last 15 months.-  
 

CP borrowing limit INR 499.00 Crore 

Supporting Board Resolution  Enclosed as Annexure I 

details of CP issued during the last 15 months As mentioned below 
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General Business 

Investor Name ISIN No. Issue Date Maturity Date Days Amount Coupon 

Barclays Bank PLC INE0P4D14010 31-May-23 28-Aug-23 89 800,000,000 7.25% 

Barclays Bank PLC INE0P4D14028 31-Jul-23 01-Nov-23 93 700,000,000 7.15% 

Barclays Bank PLC INE0P4D14036 22-Dec-23 21-Mar-24 90 1,500,000,000 7.45% 

Barclays Bank PLC INE0P4D14044 27-Mar-24 25-Jun-24 90 1,500,000,000 7.40% 

Yes Bank Ltd INE0P4D14051 28-Jun-24 24-Sep-24 88 500,000,000 7.68% 

 
4.3 End-use of funds:- For On Lending to wholesale borrowers 

 
4.4 Credit Support/enhancement (if any): Not Applicable 
 

i. Details of instrument, amount, guarantor company 
ii. Copy of the executed guarantee 

iii. Net worth of the guarantor company 
iv. Names of companies to which guarantor has issued similar guarantee 
v. Extent of the guarantee offered by the guarantor company 

vi. Conditions under which the guarantee will be invoked 
 

5. Financial Information: 
 

5.1 Audited / Limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone 
financial information (Profit & Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) 
along with auditor qualifications, if any, for last three years along with latest available 
financial results.- Attached as Annexure II 

 
In case an issuer is required to prepare financial results for the purpose of consolidated 
financial results in terms of Regulation 33 of SEBI LODR Regulations, latest available 
quarterly financial results shall be filed- Not applicable 

 
5.2 Latest audited financials should not be older than six month from the date of application  

for listing:-  Audited Standalone Financial Results for the period ended March 31, 2024  
 

5.3  Provided that listed issuers (who have already listed their specified securities and/or NCDs 
and/or NCRPS who are in compliance with SEBI LODR Regulations 2015, and/or issuers (who 
have outstanding listed CPs)  who are in compliance with the continuous listing conditions 
mentioned at paragraphs 7-10 below, may file unaudited financials with limited review for 
the stub period in the current financial year, subject to making necessary disclosures in this 
regard including risk factors.-  

 
5.4  Latest available limited review quarterly financial results in case an issuer is not having any 

listed specified securities and is required to prepare such results on Page 81 of 88 quarterly 
basis for consolidation of financial results of its holding company, under the requirement of 
any applicable law(s). 
 

6. Asset Liability Management (ALM) Disclosures:  
 

    6.1  Summarized Lending Policy including overview of origination, risk management, monitoring 
and collections 
 
CNHIC has in place policies for both Commercial/Wholesale lending and retail lending, which 
are the guiding documents for the respective lending operations of the Company.  

 
 



 

 
 

CNH Industrial Capital 

(India) Private Limited 

 
Registered Office: 

Level-4, Rectangle-1  

D4, Behind Marriot Hotel 
Commercial Complex, D-4, 

Saket, New Delhi – 110017 

Tel: 011-66544146 
 

Corporate Office 

4th Floor, Plot no. 14A, 

Sector 18  

ATC Building, Maruti 

Industrial Complex, 

Gurugram – 122015 

Haryana, India 

Tel : +91 124-6659104 

E-mail : 

cnhicapindia@cnhind.com 

 
CIN: 

U65999DL2017PTC325

228 

 CNH Industrial Capital 
(India) Private Limited 

 

Corporate Office 

4th Floor, Plot no. 14A, Sector 

18  

ATC Building, Maruti Industrial 

Complex, 

Gurugram – 122015 Haryana, 

India 

Tel : +91 124-6659104 

E-mail : 

cnhicapindia@cnhind.com 
 

Registered Office: 

Level-4, Rectangle-1  
D4, Behind Marriot Hotel 

Commercial Complex, D-4, 

Saket, New Delhi – 110017 
Tel: 011-66544146 

 

CIN: 
U65999DL2017PTC325228 

General Business 

The objectives of the lending policy include building the right credit culture across the 
Company in line with the identified regulatory and legal risks; building good quality and well 
diversified portfolio, ensuring compliance with various prudential norms pertaining to the 
loan portfolio as stipulated by the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI”); ensuring that adequate 
return on capital deployed is generated, commensurate with the overall risk of portfolios.  

 
The Board of Directors (“BoD”) or delegated committee constituted by the board of CNHI  
Capital viz., the India Credit Committee (“ICC”) oversees the establishment and amendment 
of policies, strategies and procedures with respect to lending and thereafter recommend to 
the Board for approval. The Company has a compliance framework in place to monitor and 
test the company’s ongoing compliance with the lending policy, applicable funding 
arrangements and regulatory requirements. The credit risk mechanism consists of policies 
and practices which ensure that the credit risk is measured and monitored at both, account 
level and portfolio level.  

 
For Wholesale Lending, Financing Products are made available/offered strictly to the CNHI 
approved dealers for products/spare parts manufactured by the CNH Group Companies. 
There are certain restrictions as well guided by the Lending Policy. Each dealer seeking credit 
facilities undergoes assessment for credit worthiness (Credit Limit Review “CLR”). Factors 
taken into consideration for the assessment of a dealer includes (i) Financial analysis (latest 
financial statements and/or income statement submitted by the dealer), (ii) CNHI repayment 
experience, (iii) Credit history/past performance (iv) Bank Guarantee, (v) Business Target (vi) 
Achievements and such other relevant Information. 

 
Based on the credit assessment, each dealer is assigned a rating (among A, B, C or D) using an 
internal Credit Rating Model. The company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits 
and monitors the risk and the market value of collateral available on a regular basis. The credit 
proposals are approved at senior management levels as per Board approved authorities, due 
to the nature and complexities of the facilities offered.  

 
There are periodic reviews conducted as defined in the company’s Credit Policy. As a part of 
due diligence process, analysis is conducted on dealer financials, Group financial, background 
of promotors & Net-worth statements etc.  

 
The credit administration and monitoring function involves ongoing administration of the 
loan account, review of changes in sanction terms and conditions, behavior classification of 
customers to establish appropriate collections and administrative activity, rating 
management monitoring through stock audit process and monitoring of loan based on early 
warning signals. 

 
The Retail lending is the master guiding document for all retail lending operations of the 
company.  
 
A detailed due diligence and credit risk assessment of the customers is done by the credit 
team by performing customer profile check, demographic information assessment, payment 
viability, study of financial documents, and analysis of credit bureau records. Decisioning on 
the loan application is done basis above mentioned information using internally defined 
credit decision criteria. This approach ensures transparency, accuracy, and regulatory 
compliance throughout our credit decision process. The company has established a 
delegation of authority based on the exposure and risk of the customers. The company has 
established Credit Committee comprises of senior management to periodically review and 
monitor credit risk and performance of portfolio across various segments. It also has a Loan 
review mechanism for constantly evaluating the quality of portfolio. Monitoring mechanisms 
are in place to identify early warning signals which result in early detection of potential stress 
accounts and thus ensuring early action for resolution of such accounts 
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General Business 

6.2 Classification of loans/advances given to associates, entities/person relating to board, senior 
management, promoters, others, etc – NOT APPLICABLE 
 
Disclosure as specified for NBFCs in SEBI circular nos. CIR/IMD/DF/12/2014, dated June 17, 
2014 and CIR/IMD/DF/6/2015, dated September 15, 2015 
 

6.3 Classification of loans/advances given, according to type of loans, denomination of loan 
outstanding by loan to value, sectors, denomination of loans outstanding by ticket size, 
geographical classification of borrowers, maturity profile etc. 
 

6.3.1 Types of Loans as on 31st March'24      
Types of Loans Rs. Crores  
(i) Secured                        1,839.59   
(ii) Unsecured                                    -     
Total assets under management                        1,839.59   
 
6.3.2 Sectoral Exposures as on 31st March’24 

  
Segment Wise Break-up of AUM Percentage of AUM 

1. Retail   

Vehicle Finance 74.60% 

2. Wholesale   

Others 25.40% 
  

6.3.3 Denomination of loans outstanding by Loan To Value as on 31st March'24 
 

Retail Loans  (Amount in Rs. Crores)  

LTV Ratio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

Less than 50%  92.35   1.19   3.21   96.75  

51-90%  999.08   47.17   115.31   1,161.56  

91-100%  112.12   0.96   0.87   113.95  

Total  1,203.55   49.32   119.39   1,372.26  

 

Commercial Finance  (Amount in Rs. Crores)  

LTV Ratio Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 

91-100%  396.95   29.54   40.84   467.33  

More than 100% - - - - 

Total  396.95   29.54   40.84   467.33  

 
6.3.4 Denomination of loans outstanding by ticket size as on 31st March'24 
 

Ticket Size % of AUM 

Up to 2 lakhs 0.23% 

INR 2-5 Lakhs 13.35% 

INR 5-10 Lakhs 36.98% 

INR 10-25 Lakhs 9.18% 

INR 25-50 Lakhs 7.84% 

INR 50 lakhs - 1 Crore 8.55% 

INR 1-5 Crore  18.27% 

INR 5-25 Crore  5.60% 



 

 
 

CNH Industrial Capital 

(India) Private Limited 

 
Registered Office: 

Level-4, Rectangle-1  

D4, Behind Marriot Hotel 
Commercial Complex, D-4, 

Saket, New Delhi – 110017 

Tel: 011-66544146 
 

Corporate Office 

4th Floor, Plot no. 14A, 

Sector 18  

ATC Building, Maruti 

Industrial Complex, 

Gurugram – 122015 

Haryana, India 

Tel : +91 124-6659104 

E-mail : 

cnhicapindia@cnhind.com 

 
CIN: 

U65999DL2017PTC325

228 

 CNH Industrial Capital 
(India) Private Limited 

 

Corporate Office 

4th Floor, Plot no. 14A, Sector 

18  

ATC Building, Maruti Industrial 

Complex, 

Gurugram – 122015 Haryana, 

India 

Tel : +91 124-6659104 

E-mail : 

cnhicapindia@cnhind.com 
 

Registered Office: 

Level-4, Rectangle-1  
D4, Behind Marriot Hotel 

Commercial Complex, D-4, 

Saket, New Delhi – 110017 
Tel: 011-66544146 

 

CIN: 
U65999DL2017PTC325228 

General Business 

6.3.5 Geographical classification of borrowers as on 31st March'24 
  
Top 5 States % of AUM 

i. Maharashtra 17.32% 

ii. Madhya Pradesh 13.89% 

iii. Gujarat 11.71% 

iv. Haryana 9.08% 

v. Punjab 7.44% 

 
6.3.6 Residual maturity of Assets and Liabilities as on as on 31st March'24 

 

Particulars 
  

1 to 
7 

days 

8 to 
14 

days 

15 
days 

to 
30/31 
days 

Over 1 
month 
upto 2 
month

s 

Over 2 
month
s upto 

3 
month

s 

Over 3 
months 

and 
upto 6 

months 

Over 
6 

mont
hs 

and 
upto 

1 
Year 

Over 
1 

Year 
and 
upto 

3 
Years 

Over 3 
Years 
and 

upto 5 
Years 

@ 

Over 5 
Years 

Total 

Deposits - - - - - - - - - - - 

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)             

Advances
* 

40.1
3 

3.00 36.55 74.49 187.2
2 

382.15 251.8
3 

574.3
5 

191.55 8.27 1,749.
54 

(35.
91) 

(7.48) (31.70
) 

(86.50
) 

(208.8
9) 

(410.92) (264.2
6) 

(558.
61) 

(178.97) (11.00) (1,794.
24)             

Investmen
ts 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-)             

Borrowings - - 136.0
4 

46.92 192.3
0 

179.00 249.5
5 

438.1
1 

52.24 - 1,294.
16 

- - (108.
98) 

(225.
96) 

(99.1
5) 

(148.9
5) 

(316.
48) 

(371.8
8) 

(115.72) - (1,387.
12)             

Foreign 
currency 
assets$ 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) 

            

Foreign 
currency 

liabilities $ 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) (-) 
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General Business 

6.4 Aggregated exposure to the top 20 borrowers with respect to the concentration of advances, 
exposures to be disclosed in the manner as prescribed by RBI in its stipulations on Corporate 
Governance for NBFCs or HFCs from time to time 
 

Concentration of Exposures as on 31st March'24  
 (Amount in Rs. cr)  

Particulars As at  
31 March 2024 

Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 186.20 

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to 
total exposures of the NBFC on borrowers / customers 

9.97% 

 
6.5 Details of loans, overdue and classified as non-performing in accordance with RBI Stipulations 

 

Movement of NPAs as on 31st Mar'24  

                                            (Amount in Rs. cr)  

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 4.01% 

(ii) Movement of NPAs ( Gross)   

(a) Opening balance                           211.88  

(b) Additions during the year                           97.75  

(c ) Reductions during the year                            (149.40) 

(d) Closing balance                           160.23  

(iii) Movement of net NPAs   

(a) Opening balance                              85.61  

(b) Additions during the year                              43.18  

(c ) Reductions during the year                            (58.60) 

(d) Closing balance                              70.19  

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs   

(a) Opening balance                              126.27  

(b) Additions during the year                              54.57  

(c ) Write off / Write back of excess 
provisions                            (90.80) 

(d) Closing balance                           90.04  

 
6.6 A portfolio summary with regard to industries/sectors to which borrowings have been made: 

 

Loans to industries/sector as on 31st Mar'24  

 

                                           
(Amount in Rs. cr) 

Total Loans & Advances                        1,839.59 

Loans to Corporates                             46.15  

Loans to Retail Customers                        1,372.26  

Others                           421.18 
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General Business 

6.7 NPA Exposures of the issuer for the last three years (both gross and net exposures) and 
provisioning made to the same as per the last audited financial statements of the issuer. 

 
Net Exposure of the issuer for the last three financial years (both gross and net exposures) with provisioning 

     (Amount in Rs. Crores)  

Particulars As at 31-Mar-23 
As at 31-Mar-
22 

As at 31-Mar-21 

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 4.77% 4.54% 3.15% 

(ii) Movement of NPAs ( Gross)    

(a) Opening balance 199.92 117.75 66.06 

(b) Additions during the year 136.26 142.69 83.21 

(c ) Reductions during the year (124.30) (60.53) (31.52) 

(d) Closing balance 211.88 199.92 117.75 

(iii) Movement of net NPAs    

(a) Opening balance 82.59 55.73 38.00 

(b) Additions during the year 53.42 71.51 39.21 

(c ) Reductions during the year (50.40) (44.65) (21.48) 

(d) Closing balance 85.61 82.59 55.73 

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs    

(a) Opening balance 117.33 62.02 28.06 

(b) Additions during the year 82.84 71.19 44.00 

(c ) Write off / Write back of excess provisions (73.90) (15.88) (10.04) 

(d) Closing balance 126.27 117.33 62.02 

 
6.8 Quantum and percentage of secured vis-à-vis unsecured borrowings made: Refer table under Point 

6.3.1 
 

6.9 Any change in promoters holding during the last financial year beyond the threshold, as prescribed 
by RBI – No change 
 

For CNH Industrial Capital India Private Limited 
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S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPEI\DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF' CNH IIDUSTRIAL CAPITAL (INDIA) PRTVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CI\H INDUSTRIAL CAPITAL (INDIA)
PRfVATE LIMITED ("the Compzny"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31,2024, the

statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of changes in equity

and the Statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.(hereinafter

referred to as ("the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,2013 (the "Act") in the manner

so required and give a true and fair view in conformify with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed

under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as

amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31,2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its

cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA's)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described

in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirerrrents and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does

not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other information is expected to

be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information identified above, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement

therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with the governance.

Plot No. 68, Okhla industrialArea, Phase-lll, New Delhi-110020
Tel: +91-11-4670 8888 E-mail: delhi@sskmin.com
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies

Act, 20li ("ihe Act"; with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair

view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in

equlty and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in

tndia, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions

of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a

true and fair view and are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error'

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

Operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted

in aciordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identif and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud

or e(ror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from effor, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls.

a

a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
a
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conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report

to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifi
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's

r.pott. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in

a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial

Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning

the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evahrale the effeet of any

identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identifu during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (theooOrder") issued by the Central

Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the matters

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 2(iXvi)
below on reporting under Rule l1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)

and also that the backup ofthe books ofaccounts and other books and papers maintained in electronic
mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

NEW
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,2024 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act'

0 With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made

to our remarks in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting under rule l1(g) of the rules.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial conffols with reference to Financial Statements

of the Cbmpany and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"Annexure B".

h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the

Company for the year ended March 31,2024.

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,inour opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Compariy has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial positioh in its

Financial Statements. Refer Note 2.39 to the Financial Statements

ii. The company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material

foreseeable losses, ifany, on long term contracts including derivative contracts'

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,2024.

iv. a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
.by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"),

with the unierstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and beliei no funds

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company

f.o- uny person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,

whether iecorded in writing or otherwis e, that the Company shall, whether; riirectly or

indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by

or on behalf of the Funding Parly ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, securiS'

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) ofRule I 1(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,

contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31,2024.
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vl.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No: 500441

Partner

Place:NewDelhi
Date:2610612024

ffiil?,"ilf #?qi B K F B p u 6 1 D3

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Compariy has used accountirrg software

and loan management software for maintaining its books of account which has feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all

relevant fansactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled at

database level and certain master table fields for the accounting software and certain parameters

of audit trail were not captured for loan management software. Further, the edit logs for accounting

software has not been maintained on servers physically located in India. Refer note XXX to the

accompanying financial statements.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature

being tampered with, wherein the audit hail functionality was enabled'

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April l,
2023 , thus reporting under Rule 1 1(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on

preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable

for the financial year ended March 31,2024."
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AI\NEXURE 65AD TO THE INDEPEI\DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of
our report to the Members of CNH IIIDUSTRIAL CAFITAL G{DIA) PRfVATE LIMITED oieven

date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

l In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

c.

d

a.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets

b. The Property, Plant & Equipment and right to use assets have been physically verified by the

management according to programme of periodical verification in a phased manner, which in

our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size ofthe Company and the nature of its Assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were

noticed on such verification ofassets due for physical verification in the current year.

Based on the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any

immovable Property, hence reporting under clause 3(i) (c) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
recordso the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including

right- of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the

Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in2016) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company's business does not involve inventories and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) (a)

of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of { 5 crore, in aggregate,

at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

the Company has made investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability Pa(nprships, anr-l granted

unsecured loans to other parties, during the year, in respect of which:

(a) Reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not applicable as the Company is a Non-

e

ll

lll.

Banking Financial Company.
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(b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans provided, during the year are,

prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Company has not made investment or

provided any guarantee or security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any

other parties.

(c) ln respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and

payment of interest has been stipulalecl and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts

of interest have generally been regular as per stipulation. Since, the Company is aNBFC whose

principal business is to give loans and considering the significant volume of transactions with

number of borrowers furnishing the number of cases of default is practically not feasible.

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the details of total amount overdue above 90 days

are as follows:
in Rs. million

Based on the information & explanations given to us, reasonable steps have been taken by

the company for recovery of principal & interest'

(e) Reporting under clause 3(iii) (e) of the Order is not applicable as the Company is a Non-

Banking Financial Company.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable

on demand or without speciffing any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence the

reporting under clause 3(iiD (D is not applicable'

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any loan or

guarantee or made any investments or provided any security covered under section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,

reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable'

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-

section (l) of section 148 of the Companies Act,2013 for the business activities carried out by the

Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

vll. In respect ofstatutory dues:

In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory

dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,

duty of Custom, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the apprgpriate

lv.

v

vl.

Total OverduePrincipal
Overdue

Interest
Overdue

Count of
Cases

Type ofloan

350.7368.842721 281.89Retail

27.40 187.8692 160.46Wholesale

96.24 s3 8.59442.3sTotal 2,813

a

authorities
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vlll

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident

Fund, lncome Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, Cess and other material statutory

dues in arrears as at March 31,2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

b. There is no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited as

on March 31,2024 on account of disputes.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 196l (43 of
196r).

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of

records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment

of Interest thereon to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Otder is not

applicable.

(b) Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the Company has not been declared

wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, funds raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-

term purposes by the ComPanY.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records,

the company does not have any subsidiary orjoint venture or associates and hence, reporting under

clause 3(ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination-of records,

the company does not have any subsidiary orjoint venture or associates and hence, reporting under

clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is

not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, during the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause

3(xXb) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no material fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the

period covered by our audit except management has reported, as mentioned in Note 2.47, few

instances of misappropriation of cash collected from customers and other forms of embezzlement of

lx.

X.

xl.
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cash by the employees involving amount aggregating to INR 0.39 million. The Company has

terminated services of such employees and also initiated legal action against them.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form

ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 withthe Central

Government, during the year and upto the date of this report'

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by

the company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,2013

with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party

transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS'

xiv. (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, in our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the

size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports covering period till June 30,2023 in determining

the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. As informed to us, the internal audit report for

the remaining part of the year is under progress as on the date of this report and accordingly has not

been considered by us.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records

of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company was required to be registered under Section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934 as aNBFC and has obtained the certificate vide nc. N-14.03413 dated April 02, 2018.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid

Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India

Act,1934.
(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations'made

by the Reserve Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the

XV.

xvi.

immediately preceding financial year



S S KOTHARI MEHTA
& CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

xlx.

xvlll.

xx.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis ofthe financial ratios, ageing and expected dates ofrealisation offinancial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our

knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe

that any maierial uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within

a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as

tothe future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to

the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities

falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the

Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than

ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in

compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act' Ae.eordingly,

reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) As per information and explanations given to us, the company has transferred unspent amounts

pursuant to ongoing projects with respect to CSR to a special account as per sub-section (6) of section

135 of the said Act.

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No 500441

Vijay
Partner

Place: NewDelhi
Date:2610612024

Membership No. 092671

uDrN: 24osa67t, $KFBPU c"703
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,,Annexure B" to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial Statements of CllH
TIIDUSTRTAL CAPTTAL (INDTA) PRTVATE LrMrrED.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Coinpanies Act, 2013 (..the Act") as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of 'Report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements' of our Independent Auditor's Report

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement of CllH
NDUSTRIAL CAPITAL (INDIA) PRfVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31,2024 in

conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.

Management's Responsibitity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on ihe internal control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal conffol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal

Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls tirat were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business'

including adherence io .o-puny's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds uid ..rorr, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to

Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section

143(10) of the Companies Act,2073, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.

Those Standards und th" Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with

ieference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively

in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls syrt"m with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit

of internal financiai controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures seGcted dep6nd on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS financial

statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS

hnancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controi with reference to financial statements includes those policies and

p.o.Ld*.r that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly

ieflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the comp any; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as oi""ssary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being

made onty in aicordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company:- and(3) provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements'

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements

due to 
"no. 

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the

internal financial control with reference to financial statementrrnuyt""o.e inadequate because of changes

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements were operating effectively as at March 37,2024, based on the internal control with reference

to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India'

For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No: 500441

Vijay Kumar
Partner

Membership No. 092671

uDIN: 21og26q TBKFB PU6 qo3

Place:NewDelhi
Date:2610612024



' Cr\*l{ lndustlial Capital (lndia} Pri\ate Limited
Balance Sheet as at 3l l\'Iarch 2024

l.lll onotml.s urc tn lltrltt'ct llhlliuts L'rrtpt rlnra Llutu ukl Mll(t\ {ttlrL't1lrst' .rlultLl}

Pa rt icnla rs '\''otes
A:; at

31 l'larch 20?.{

As at
3l llarch 2023

Ass€ts

Financial assets

a) Cash and cash erluivalents

b ) Derivative financial instraments

c ) ReceiVables

i) Trade recejvables

rii Other receilables

d ) Loans

e ) Olhra Financial assets

\on-financial assets

a) Non Currc.nt ta\ assets (ne1)

b) Deferred tax asscls (netl

c ) Property. plant and equiplnenl
d) Other lntangible assets

e ) Other non-financial assr'ls

2.1

2.27

2.3

2.4

2,5

2.6 (^l

2.8 (ai
2.8 (l))
to

901.76

45 20

IO.J I

t7,1s2.23

8. l9

148.00

3(r:l.8.1

i6.45
:-1 J:

67.88

566.60

126.12

55.30

0.99

I 7,598.26
9 0-l

148.00
.1i4.8S

19.: I

38 05

56.86

I'otal Ass€ts 18.7(rJ.l9 I 9.0(r3.(rl

Liabilities and Uquiti
Financial liabilities

a) Payables

i) Other Palables
- Total outstandlng dues ofnicro enterprises and small enlerplises
- Tolal drres o1'crerlitors othcr than rnicro enterprises and smali

b) Debt sc'curities

c r Borro$ ints (Olher than Dcl.t Sccrrritic: t

d t Other llnancial liabilities

\on-financial liabilities
a) Current ta\ liabilities (net)

b) Provisions

c ) Other non-financial liabilities

Equity
a) Erluitl share caliital

h) Other e(luit]

2.10

2.10

2.t I

2.13

2.6 (b)
2.11
1lC

2.16
1lt

0.01

78.80

1..+7,1 61

i 1.466 98

73? 8:

43 39

t0.10
Ii.:8

i.e7l 00
q5i.70

0..18

l .i-871 I i
7t}.1.96

16.8.i
i?{6

l.q?: {.,0

j j.8. l{l

Total Liabilities and Equit.!' I8.76"{.I9 ! 9,063.(rl

Sumnran ol'sitlnificant accour)llng nolrciec 1

The acconrpanl ing noles are an integral part ofthe financial slatements

As per our repon ofeveri date

For S S Kothari \Iehta & (.o. l-Ll'
Chartered Accorntanls

ICAl Firnr Registration No. 000756N/l',J500441

pcr Kumtr
Partner

Membership No. 09267I

Place Nel'Delhi
Date: 26 June 2024

For and on behalf of the Boa rd ol Dircctors of
{'tiH ICapital (lndia) Private !-imited

-MYishal (lhaudhurl'

Managinil Director'

DIN No.: 09"i632[]9

Plrc': Gt''"'" t't

Additional Director

DIN No.: 10432477

Pl3qg (ir1rr1g11..

Date: 26.lune l0lulDate: 26 Jurre,) ?024

I CIl,^, W#
ngro

Ch

Piae"': Gurugtram

Date: 26 lunc l0ll4

Rini Ja

Corlpanl Secretarl

Membership No.

Place: Curug:ranr

Officer

NEW

lJA

t(
b

e

lnd u

c)
ID€
A)

I

Date: 16 .lune



CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Staaement of profif and loss for thc I'car ended 3l Mareh 2024

l)ll .tnr\nls q'! in Iiltltas Alillions r.\(cpt Jh.trc.lut(r utld unlt\s ollrcr\i\c st.ttcd)

Particulars Notes
For the year ended

3l March 2024
For the year ended

3l llarch 2023

from operations
Interest income
Fee incone

Total Revenue from operafions

Other Incorne

Total Income (l)

Expenses

Finance costs

hnpairment on financial instrunrents

Ernployee benefi ts expense

Depreciation and arnofiisation
Other expenses

Total erpenses (Il)

2.lE
2.19

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

2.24
t )<

) ?tl t)
88 58

2.210.96

83.66

2,411.70

l7.59
2,321.62

26.15

2,429.29

885.13

160.35

268.42

28.7s

306.82

2,3sI.07

879.30

593.55

26-3.18

16.60

314 77

1,619.d7 2,097.40

Profit before tar (lllt= {l)-(lIl 179.82 25t.67

Tax expenses:

Ctrrrenl Income lax

Prior yeil lncome tax
Deferred tax

124.84

'12 40

50.81

42.t0
12.39

Total tax exDenses dV) t97.21 10s.30

Profif after tax (llll(lV) 5E2.5E 148-31

0ther comprehensive income

a) ltems tbat will not to be reclassified to profit or loss

i) Re{neasurenrent (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans

ii) Income tax impact on iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b) ltems that will reclassified to profit or loss

i) Fair vahre gain on derivatiye Financial Instruments

ii) Income tax inrpact on items lhat \yill not to be reclassified to profil or loss

Total Other comprehensile income for the year (net of tax)

Total Comprehensire income for the year

Earnings per equig sharc
Basic (Rs.)

Diluted (Rs.)

Nominal Yalue oer share (Rs.)

2.26

(0.60)

0.15

(8.73 )

2.20

2.t2
(0.s3)

38.08

(e.s8)

(6.98) 30.09

s75.60

!'41
!'4',1

r0.00

t74,46

0.37

0.37

t0.00

Sumrnm of sicrrificall accourtinr Dolicies I
The accontpanying rotes are al integral pan

As per our reporl ofe\er dale

the statenlents

For S S Kotlrari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accotrntants

PIace: Nerv Delhi
Date.26 Jvre2024

CNH

vishal Chaudhurt
Managing Director
Dh{ No.:09463109

Place: Gurugrarn

Dat!'::() .lure 20.14?(

Chiel'

Placc: Curugratr
Dare : 16.tunc l{),r,1

**''':.:M

Additiorral Directcr

For nnd of thc Board

Capital
Al Firrn Registratior No 000756N'N500441

Parhrer

l\lenlbershiP No. 091b7 i

ller

DIN No.: 10132.177

Place: Gurugrarr
Date: ?6.lune 2024

W^r,N'
('onpany Secrrtalv oNH/
Menrbership No. *
Place: Grurrgran
Ilate: 2t .lure ?0il{

b
aJ

C)

>J

/_/,1



CNll lndustrial Capilal (lndi^) Private Limited
Cash florr statenrent for the ]'ear cnded 3t Nlarch 2024

tAll dDlouills ut" iil llnpcls i,lillioil., cxccll shat? dutu dnd ilnlcss othenris! tkilcd)

Particulars
For lhe year cnded
3l l\larch 2024

For the lear ended

3l l\l^rch:023

A Cash florv frorn opernting acliviliesi
Nel profit before tax

AdjustneDt to reconcile profit before lar to Del cash flolrs
Depreciation and amodisation expense

Interest on lease liabilities

Unrealised exchange (gain)/loss or foreign currenct' transactions

Provision for enrplol ee benefits

Liabilities no longer required rvitten lrack

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision no Ionger required utitten back

Loss on sale of repo rurits ard wile-ol1'
Gain on derecognition of lece liability
lmpairnrent Ioss on linancial insruments

literest income on financial assets measured al fair value

Operating profit before sorking capital changes

Changes in norking capital

Decrease/ (lncrease) in trade receivables

(lncrease)/ Decrease in other receivables

Decrease/ (hrcrease) in loans

(lncrease) in otlrer linancial assels

(lncrease) in otlrer non-financial assets

(Decrease)/ Increase in other payables

Irrcrease in other financial liabilities
(Decrease)/ Increase in other nol-financial liabililies

Cash flox from / (uscd in) opera(irg activities

Less: IncoD)e tax paid

719 81

3.41

(0 2-.t)

1.6'7

(r 34)

5:3.64
(0 0:1)

(l6i.l9)
(0.64)

912.75

t0.l0
( l 5.33)

185.68

(0. r 8)

(9.69)
(l 4.14)

10.87

(6. r 8)

1,213.78

(80.94)

:5-3.67

16.60

2.68

114
(0 65)
(4.s1 )

189

470 33

(005)

t23.t1
(0.7 l )

863.59

( l5.r 7)

tt7
(33e 7.1)

(0 00)
( l4.r 5)

4.73

291.97

2.09

791.54

t4-t.'18)

h"et cash llorv from / (used iil) operaling activities (A)

B Cash florv fronr investing 
^ctivitics:

PLrchase of P.openl' plailt and equiplrent aocl intangible assets

Principal receipls under sublease

1 -1 62.84

l,67

149.16

(40.88)

1.66

Net cflsh used iD iilvestiDg aclivities (B)

C Cash flon'from financing activities:

Lease liabilitl,paid
Interesl paid or Iease liability
Proceeds from borrowitrgs

Repa)meit of borowings

|.67

( l 4.14)
(3..11 )

10.388 e6

(11,100.56)

(39.22)

(S.74 )

(l (rst
'7.0'7'7 29

(7,487.6.i )

Net Cash (used in) / flow fronr financiDg actilities (C)

Nel iicrease / (decrease) in cash and cash eqtri1'alcnts (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalenls 6 al the begilnitrg ofthe vear

Cash and cash eouivalents at the end of the rear

(829.3s) (12r.76)

335.16 288.78

566.60

901 -?6

277.82

566.60

Componenls of cash and caslr equivalents

Cash on band

Balance u,ith banks

ln current accounts

ln Deposits with original rnaturit_v of less than drree Drontlrs

Totfll c{sh nnd cash eotrivalenls (notes 2.1 )

5.8i

70.71

825 19

901.76

8.98

I t.i.17

t,l4 15

566,60

Summary of sisnificanl accountinq policies
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Statement ofChanges in equity for the year ended 3l l\larch 2024

(All qiltounts arc in llupees Milliorts axcapl slld'e .lold and mtlas: othan,isa slalc.l)

a) share

+refer note 2.1 6

b) Other equig

The accompanying noles are au inlegral part ofthe fillallcial staleurents.

As per our repoft ofeven date

l'or S S Kothari i\lehta & c^o. LLP
Chanered Accountarts

For and on behalf ofBoard of Directors of
CNH Capital (hdia) Limited

iCAI Finn RegistratiLu r"o. 0Ct(t?56N/N50044 l

per \ Kunrar
Parlner

Membership No ()9i(r71

Place: Nerv Delhi

Date: 26 June 2024

Vishal Chatrdhtrrl
i\4anagjng Director

DIN No.:09463209

Ne(
-4dditional Director

DlN No : 104.12477

Place: Grnugr.anr

Date: l(r.lune 2024

4

Chief Financial

Y*,w

Place: Curugranr

Dare: 2(r.lrnre 202.1

Companl' Secretarl'

Nlenbership No.

Place:

Dnte: l6 Jure

\
PIace: Gurugranr

Date: 16 Jure 2024

Balance as at April 1,2023
Changes in equity

share capital due to
prior period errors

Balance as at April I,
2023

Changes in equify
share capital during

the year*

Balance as at March 31,

2024

3,972.00 3.972.00 3.972.00

Balance as at April 1,2022
Changes in equity

share capital due to

Drior Deriod errors

Balance as at April I,
2022

Changes in equity
share capital during

the year*

Balance as at March 31,
2023

3,972.00 3.972.00 3.972.00

Particulars

Resenes and surplus Other reserves
Other ComprehensiYe

lncome
Total equity

Retained earnings Statutory Reserue
Cash Flow hedge

reserve

As at I April 2022
Profit for the year ended -1 I March 2023

Other conrprehensive ircome / (loss) for the year ended 3l
N4arch 2023
Transfered to Statuton, Reserve

160.47
148.37

1.59

(29.6't)

61.t4

29.67

(21.97)

28.50

t99.64
r48.37

30.09

As at 3l March 2023 280.76 90.8t 6.53 378.10

Profit for llre year ended 3 I March 2024

Other comprehensive incorne / (loss) for the year ended 3l
March 2024

Transferred to Statuton' Reserve

s82.58

(0.45 )

(l r6.52) 1t6s2

(6.53)

582.58

(6.e8)

As at 3l March 2024 746.37 207.32 0.00 953.70

NEW ft*
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Linlited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2024

(AII anrcuils are in Rupees Millions except shale datd and urrless othetvise slaled)

A. Corporateinfornration

business olu'holesale and retail lending ofagricultural. comtnercial equipment's etc.

TheCompanf isawhollyownedsubsidiaryofCNHlndustrial (lndia)PrivateLimited. TheCompanyhasreceivedtheCenificateofRegisttationno.N-14.034l3dated
2 April 20 1 8 front the Resen,e Bank of lndia (the 'RBl') to carry on the business ofNon-Banking Financial Institution \\,tthout acceptance of public deposit.

B, Basis ofprcparation offinancial statements

A) Statement of compliancc in preparation of financial statements

b),the Ministry oiCorporate Affairs, Govemment of India under the Conrpanies (hrdian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (as arnended.lroln time to time) notifed

under section 133 ofthe Companies AcI2013 (the "Act") and other relevant provisions ofthe Act, the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systemicalll'lnportant Non-Depostt taking Compan), and Deposit taking Corrpany'(Resen'e Bank) Directrons. 2016 as amended titre to titre ('the NBFC Master

Directions') and notification for Implenrentation of hrdian Accounting Standard vide circular RBI/2019-201170 DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.No.l09/22.10.106/2019-20 dated

13 March 2010 ('RBI Nolillcation lbr Implementation of hd AS') issued b1'RBI.

b) Basis ofmeasurcment

liabilities that are rneasured al fair value as erplained in relevant accounting poltcies.

presented as per the requirements ol Ind AS Statement ofCash Flous.

c) Presentation of financial statements

tlie parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all ofthe lollorving circumstances:

i. The nornral corrrse o1'business

ii. The event of del'ault

iii. The event ofinsolvency or bankruptcy ofthe Cornpany and/or its counterparties

d) Functional and prcscntation currenc)'

'fhese financial staiements are presented rn Indran Rupees (lNR), which is the Company's functronal and presentation currenc)

c) flse of estinlates and judgements

adjustrnent to the canying amounts ofassets or liabilities rn fitture periods.

Judgements. assumptions and estimation uncertainties

carrying amount ofassets and liabilities at each balance sheet date:

terms ol'the financial asset are solely payments ofprincipal and interest ('SPPI') on the principal amount outstanding.

rnanaged and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The cornpany monitors financial assets nteasured at amortised cost or fair value through other

financial assets are held contrnues to be appropriale and if rt is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the

classification of those assets.

Fai' Value of Financial Inslrttments

The fair value ol f}tancial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to lransfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most

possible. but u,here this
related Io items such as

is carried out in establishilig fair values. Judgements and estimates include model inputs

.o
q
f, o)

oNEWDELHI
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Priyate Limited
Notes forming part offinancial statements for the yeal'ended 3l lVlarch 2024

(All unounts urc in liltpacs trlillion.t e.rcapl .shurc dula uncl unlas.s ollrcrv'ise slule(l)

l'air I'aluc of l:inqttiul Inslruntcnl.\

nrodel inputs related to iterns such as credit risk (both o\\'n and counlerparty)" funding Value adjustments, correlation alld volatility.

ussilnlpIions usad in esIinulit1g recrvcrublc caslt.flou's,

include:

o The Cornpan\"s intemal credit grading nrodel, ri'lrich assigns Probabilitl,ofDefaults (PD) to lhe individual grades;

ECL ('LTECL') basis and the qualitative assessmerlt:

. The segnlentation offinancial assels \\,hen tlteir ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

. Development ofECL nrodels, including tlre various fonlulas aud the choice ofinpttts;

Exposure at Defaults (EAD) arrd Loss Given Defaults (LCD).

It has been the Conrpany's policy to regularll,review its lnodels in the conlext ofacfual loss experience and adjust ${ren necessaly.

lilliclit'c Iiltcresl ll(rtc (lilll) nrcthod

an ecoDomic incentive fbl the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, ot nol to exercise the option to tenninate lhe lease.

specific to thc lease being evaluated or for a porlfolio ofleases u-ith sintilar characteristics.

A4ausurcncnt oftlefincd bane./it obligution.s: Kc)'qcliloriul qssuntplioll.\

past trends aud lilture expectations in detemlining the assumptions *'ltich are used in measutements ofobligations.

llctognition of dc/tlt'd Iett ussa|s

Ilccogni I i on und nrcuSuro11? nl of prot'i si ons und cont ingenci?s

judgment is required to conclude on lhese estimates.

f) Measurcment of fair valuc

Level I : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

prices).

Level 3: inputs for the assel or liabiliO, that are not based on obsewable market data ( unobselvable inputs).

When Ineasuring the fail value of or a liability, the Cotnpanv uses obseruable lnarket data as far as possible. Ifthe inputs used to rneasure the fair value ofan

asset or a lrabilitl, fall into of the fair value hierarchy. then the fai r val ue measurement is categorised i n its entireo in the sanre value

hierarchy as the lorvcst to the entire measurement. ita/

::t
iJ
C

-o
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. .)
p
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CNH lndustrial Capital (lndia) PriYate Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year cnded 31 lllarch 2024

(.411 unnunts urc in llupacs ,\ lillions (,xcpt tlure dutu untl unlcss olharu isa slutctl)

l Summarr,of material accoxnting policics

l.l Revenue recognition

fees ol incremental costs tlrat are directly attributable and are an integral part olthe ElR. but not lirlure credil losses.

becornes credit-irnpaired and is, therefore. regarded as "Stage 3"- tlre cornprn) recognises interest income on receipt basis.

(ri) Foreclosure charges, penal interest on delaved paymenls and other dues in respect ofloans are recognized on receipt basis.

(iii) Interest inconre lionr fixed deposit: ReYenue fronr interest on bank deposits are recognised on accrual basis.

1.2 Property, plant and equipnent (PPE), Intangible ass€ts, Depreciation and amortisation

PPE

measured reliabh'. Other repairs and lnainlenance costs are expensed ofTas and ulren incurred.

Ihe asset) is inciuded in lhe statenrent ofproflt and ioss \lren the asset is derecognised.

lntangible assets

anrortisalion and accu:nulaled impairntent Iosses.

Depreciation and amortisntion

Asscts Useful lives estimated b) the management (\'ears)

CornDuters J YCATS

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Sotlrvare 3-5 years

integral pan thereolis depreciated prospeclivel)' over the remaining uselul lil'e ofthat asset.

amonisable aurounl is clrarged over the revised remaining useful life.

1,3 lnpairment of non-financial asscls

can be identifred, an appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment. depreciation is provided on the reviscd can)'ing alnounl ofthe asset over its remaining uselil life.

1.4 l-orcign currency translation
'l'he Companlrs financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (lNR) rrfiich is also the Companrr's functional curency

recognition. Incorne and expenses in foreign cunencies are initially recorded b1,the Companv at the exchange rates prevailing on the date ofthe transaction.

losses arising on settlement and restaternent are recognised in the StateDrenl ofProfit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in tenns of historical cost in a lbreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-

np if a/C

.a:
lf
C

'al

.J
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statemenls for the year ended 3l March 2024

(All anoults arc in Rupees Millions except shcu'e dala and unless otltenrise slated)

1.5 Retirement and other employee benefits

pa)'able to the schente for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the corrtribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a

then excess is recognised as atr asset to the extent that the pre-pal,urent rvill lead to, Ibr exarnple, a reduction in f-uture payment or a cash ref'und.

each year end. Separate actuarial valuatiorr is carried out 1br each plan using the projected unit credit rnethod.

the return on plan assets (excluding arnounts included in net interes! on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised intmediately in the balance sheet with a

Past sen,ice costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- The date ofthe plan amendment or curtailment; and

- The date that the Compan,r, recognises related restructuring costs

benefit obligation as an expense in tlre Slatenrent ofProfit and Loss:

- Setlice costs comprising curent sen,ice costs, paslsen'ice costs, gains and losses on cuftailnrents and non-loutine settlements, and

- Net int!'rest expense or incorre

accumulated leave expected to be carried lbrward beyond tu,eh,e months, as long tenn ernployee benefit lor measurernent purposes.

1.6 Leases

peliod oftirne in exchange lbr consideration.

Where the Company is lessce

lease liabilitles to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the undellfing assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

section 1.3 Impairment olnon-financial assets.

ii) Lease liability
At the contmencement date oftlte lease. the Company recognizes lease liabilitres measured at the presenl value ofthe lease payments to be made over the lease terrn. The

guarantees.

(e.g., changes to f'uture paymenls resulting fiom a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

iii) Short term leasc

The Companl,applies the short-tem lease recoglrition exemption to its shoft term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease lerm of l2 rnonths or less lrom the

oommencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on shorl-term leases are recognised as and u4ren due.

1.7 Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and defen€d tax.

Currcnt fncome tax

I 961 . The tax rates and tax laws to colnpute the amounl are those that are enacted or substantively

Current Income tax outside profit or loss is recognrsed outside profil or

NEW DETHI

items are lecognised in

t

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity

reporling date.

income or in equit1 l. Current tax



CNH lndoslrinl Capitnl (lndin) PrivAte Linrited
Nolcs formitrg pnrt oflinancial statenrents for thc year end€d 3l M{rth 20?4

(.111 ailbilil.t dra iil lhpr!s f,lillidts $L't'lrt sfuil a .lqta uLl iltilcss othlt1tis.' st1ld)

Deferred tax

reporling purposes at the repofiing date.

credils and unused ia\ losses can be ulilised

e\lent that it has beconre probable that future lasable proflts will allow the del'erred tax asset 1o be recovered.

(ard ta\ la\\'s) that ha\ e beeD enacied or slrbstantir ely enactecl at the reponing date.

arc recogDised in correlalion 10 the underlling Iansaction eitltel in OCI or directlv in equiq

laxes relale to the sanre taxable enlin,and the sante lasation authoritr.

1.8 Provision and contingencies

pro\ ision is prcsented in the Slatertent of prolit and loss net of anv reimbursenlent.

When discounting is uscd, the increase i| tlle provision due 1o the passage oftime is rccognised as a finance cost.

- A present obligatioi arisin$ fiom past c\ents, when it js not probable thal an outllow ofresources lvill bc rcquired to seftle the obligation

- A present obligatior arisinS fiorn prsl events. shen no reliable estinrate is possible.

- A possible otrligatior arising fronr pasl elents, unless the Probabilitl ofoutl)orv olresources is tenlole.

irllo\ ol ecunornic herefits is probable

1.9 Financialinstrtrments

1.9,1 Finrncial Assets

l.9.l.l Initirl rcrognition rnd measurement

llnancial asset.

1.9.1.2 Cl.ssificalion and Silbscqneilt ilreasurcDcil(

For purposes of subseqLlenl measurenent, financial asscts arc classilled in fbilr cnlelories

- Debt instrulnents al alnonised cosl

- Debt inslruments at l'air value rhroilgh other comprchensive inconre (FVTOCI)

- Debt instroDlents and equit! instnrnrenls a1 fair \alue through prolll or loss 1F\/TPL)
- Equil) i nsllrnerts nleasured r1 l'ai r Ialue tht ouglt olher conrpr chensi vc inconle ( FVTOC I )

1.9.1.3 Debt instrunrents at aDortised costs

A debt irrsrument is nreasured al the aorortised cost il'bolh the lbllorling condilions arc met:

- The asset is held rvilhin a business n)odel rvhose obiective is to hold nssets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

interestinconreinthestatcnrenlofprofitorloss Thelossesarisingfionrinrpairnrenlare'rccognisedinthestateDenlofprofitandloss.

t.9.1.,1 Dcbl instrilnrcnls at F\'OCl
A 'debt instr ument' is classifled as ai lhe F\/ IOCI il't)olh of the lbllos inS cr iler in ar e rnet

- The objective ofthe business nrodel is achie\.ed both b) collecting cortractral cash llorvs and selling the finarrcial assels. and

- The asset's conlractual cash tlo$s represent SPPL

holding FVTOCI detrt instrunlent is reponed as interesl iDconre usinS the EtR method.

1.9.1.5 Deht instromcnts al FYTPL

classified as at F\/'fPL.

I'VTPI cateeon arenreisrrredall'ni.\,allrc\\'ithallchnnrcsrccogrtizcdirthestatcnteillol'Prolilnndlos(

1.9.1,6 Equity lnvrstments

electioD on an inslrunrent-bv-insttunlent basis. The classificalioI is n]ade on inilial recocnition and is irrevocable

cquily
Equity inst(rmcnts FV'l-PL calegon,are rneasured al fair value with all changes recognized

(,1

-tJ_.:
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CNH lndustrial Capilal (lndia) Private Linitcd
Notes form ing part of financial statem ents for the yea r ended 3l Match 2024

(All ilnoilnts drc in lauples Millioils c\LeJil sharc data old unlc.\s illktlrisc slalcd)

1.9.2 Finflnci^lLiabilities
1.9.2.1 Iilitifll recognitioil and nreastrremetrl

altrihrilable traDsaction costs

1.9.2.2 Classification sild Subseqilcnt nrcasilrenenl - Firancial liabilities at fair value through profi( or loss

embedded derilatir es are also classified as held lbr I ading Lurless tlrey are desigDaled as elfectir e hedging instrlnlents.

Gains or Iosses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the prof'rt or loss.

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

1.9.2,3 Classificaiion nnd Subsequent nreastrrenenf - Financial liabilities at amortised cosf

profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as n,ell as through the EIR arnonisalion process

included as frnance costs ir1 the statemenl ol'profrt and Ioss. This calegory generalll applies 1o borrouings.

1.9.3 Reclnssification of financial assets and liabilities

disposes ol', or terrrinates a business Iine. Firrancial liabilities are never reclassified.

L9.4 De recognition of finAncial assets and liabilities
1.9.4.1 Firancinl Assets

The ConrpanY has transf'erred the financial assel i1', and onll if. eithel
- It has transferred its contraclual rights to receive cash flous ftonr the financial asset

Or

arrangement.

advances rvilh lhe righl to full recoYerl ollhe amoLrnt lent plus accrued iDtercst at nrarket rates

- TheCompanycannotsellorpledgethcoriginalassetotherthanassecuritvtolhce\enlrnlrecipients.
- The Conlpany has 10 relnil anv cash flo\rs it collects on behalfofthe evennral recrpients rtilhoul material delay

the collection date and lhe datc ofrequired remittance to the ever)tual recipieDts

A transfcr only qoalifies lbr derecogrilion ifeilher:
- The Company has transferrecl substantiall) all the risks and rewards olthe asset

Or
- The Cornpany has neither transfered nor retained substantially all the risks and rervards ofthe asset. but has transl'ened control ofthe asset.

to exercise that abilitv unilaterallt,and tithout irnposin-s addilional restliclions oD the tIansl'el

liabilill'are measured oD a basis lhat reflects the righls and obligalions that tlre Contpany lras rclaiDed.

rraximunr amount ofconsideration thc Corrpanv oould lre required to par'.

involvement is limited lo the lo\\€r ofthe l'air value ofthe lransf-erred assel and the option excrcise price.

1.9.4.2 Financial Linbilities

consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

l.l0 lmpairment offinancinl assets

I il t pu i nrctl ol li ilu ilc tu I i D st ruilk il I s -

expecled to arise f.onr all possible delault evenls over thc e\pected lifc ofthe financial mset (" there has been no signiflcanl !ncrease in credn risks

since orieination. in rvhich LCL rvhich results flon def'auh evetrts thirt

NEV{ DELHI
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CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes fornring part of financial statemenls for the year ended 3l lllarch 2024

(AII anrouts are in Rupees A4illions except shu'e data and unless othetvise slaled)

fomard looking infornration and scenario anall,sis.

risk profiles. Tlre thlee slages reflects the general pattern ofcredit deteriorattorr ofa financial assets.

The Companv categories financial assets at the reporting date into slages based on the following criteria:

lnd AS I 09, the Company measures ECL on such assets over next l2 montl]s.

significant increase in credit risk is u'itnessed afier the overdues on an exposures exceed for a period more than 30 da),s. Accordingli, the Company classilles all

exposures rvith overdues exceeding 30 da1,s at each repoting date under tliis stage. The Cornpany measures lif'etime ECL on Stage 2 loans.

- Stage 3: All exposures having overdue balances lbr a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be del'aults and ale classified under this stage. Accordingly. the

100%.

amount ofthe tlnancial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition oithe financial asset.

The calculation of ECLs:

The nrechanics ofthe ECL calculations are outlined belorv arrd the ke1, elements are, as follous:

period, ilthe fhcility has not been previousll derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

financial assets, the exposur€ at default is considered for events over the lifetrme olthe instruments.

Signirtcanl incrense in credil risk

The Companl' continuously monilors all assets subiect to ECLs. In order to del.enrine u4rether an instrunent or a portlolio ol instruments is subject to l2mECL or

LTECL, the Company assesses rvhether there has been a significarlt increase in credit risk srnce initial recognition. The Company considers an exposure to have

signilicantlf increased in credit risk \vhen contractual pavments are mole than 30 da1,s past due.

The maximum period fbr rvhich the credit losses are determined is the e\pecled lil-e ol-a financial instrument.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised belou':

reporting date. These expected ll-month default probabilities are applied to an EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estinrated over the lifetime of tlie instrument.

assets, with the PD set ar 100Yt

Forward looking information:

recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on the considelation ol external actual and fbrecast inlbmration, the CornpanY forms a 'base case' view of the futute

outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcorne while the other scenarios represent more optimistic and nrore pessimistic outcomes.

Write Offs:

recoveries are credited to Statemenl ofprofit and loss account.

NEW DELHI
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CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notcs forming part of financial statements for the;'ear ended 3l March 2024

(All anrotutts are in Rupees l[illions excepl share datu and unless olhenrise slatecl)

2.1 Cash and bank balance

Particulars
As at

3l illarch 2024
As at

3 I Ilarch 2023

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balance with banks

ln Current accounts

Iu Deposits rvith origiual rnaturity ofless than three ntonths

Total

2.2 Trade reccivables

5.83

70.74

825. I 9

8.98

213.47

344. I 5

901.76 566.60

Particulars As at

3l l{arch 2024

As at
3l llarch 2023

Unsecured and considered good*

Total
*refer rrole rro. 2.J8 lor related parties

Tradc reccivable ageing schcdule

2.3 Other receivables

for follow from duc date of
As nt 3l March 2023

4s.20 55.30

45.20 55.30

Particulars

Outstanding for lbllowing periods I'rom due date of payment

As at 3l 1\4arch 2024

- Not Due Less than 6 months Total

Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 4r.00 4.20 .15.20

Particulars
Not Due Lcss than 6 months 'I'otal

Undisputed Trade receivables - consideted good 40.52 14.78 55.30

Particulars As at
3l l\{arch 2024

.{s at
3l l\larch 2023

Unsecured and considered goodx

Total
+refer nole rro. l.l8 lor rclated parlies

Other receivable ageing schedule

16 32 099
16.32 0.99

Particulars

Outstanding for fbllowing periods from due date of pal'ment
As at 3l March 2024

Not Due Less than 6 months Total

Undisputed Other receivables - considered good 16.32 l(t.32

Particulars

Outstanding for follou'ing periods from duc date of payment

As at 3l l{arch 2023

Not Due Less thrn 6 months Total

Undisputed Other receivables - considered good 0.12 0.87 0.99
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2.4

CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notes form ing part of financial statements for the ) ear ended 3 l l\larch 2024

Loans (measured at amortised cost)

Pafiiculars As at
3l March 202{

As at
31 March 2023

(A)
Retail loans and conrmercial finance

Total (A) Closs
Less: lmpaimrent loss allo$'ance

Total (.{) Ner

(B)

(i) Secured by tangible assets

(ii) Coveled by bank guarautees

liii) Secured and covered bl,both - tangible assets and bank guarantees

1ir') Unsecurtd
Total (B) Gross
Less: Inrpairment loss allowance

Total (B) Net

(C) l-oans in India
(i) Public sector
(ii) Others

Total (C) Gross

Less: lmpairment loss allorvance

Total (C) Net

2.5 Other financial assets (measur€d at amortised cost)

I 8,395.85

18,39s.8s
(1.243.62)

I q,?05. I 7

19,205.17
( 1,606.91 )

l7,1s2.23 l7,598.26

17,011.85

I,378.00

18,395.85

(t,243.62)
l7,152.23

1 8,3S5.85

18,39s.8s

(t,243 62)
17,t52.23

I 7,860.08

1,345.09

19,205.17
( 1.606.91 )

17,598.26

I S,205. I 7

I 9,20s. I 7
( 1,606.91)

I 7,598.26

Particulars As at
3l March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Securit-v deposils measured at anrortised cosl (considered good)

Llteresl accrued ort fired deposits

Lease receivables

Total

2,6 (^) Non Current tar assets (net)

3.52

0. l8
4.49

3.29

0.00

5.7 4

8.19 9.03

Particulam
As at

3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Advarrce tax and tax deducted at source

Total

2.6 (bl Current tax liabilities (net)

I 48.00 148.00

1,18.00 t48.00

Particula rs
As at

3l March 2024
As at

3l March 2023

Cuffent lax liabilities

Total

43 89

43.89

The major components of income tax expense for the ) eals ended 3l luarch 2024 and 3l March 2023 are:

(.4) Amount recognised in th€ Statement of profit and loss: For the year ended

3l March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

lncom€ tax erpens€:
Curent year tax expense

Adjushnents in respect ofcurcnt ircome lax of previous year

Defered tax charye

Tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(B) lncome tax recognised in Othcr comprehensive income:

Defened tax lcredit)/charge related to items recognised in OCI

during in the year:

-on rcmeasurements ofdefined benefit plans

-on cash flos,ledges
Income tax charged to OCI

124.84

72.40

50.81

42.10

12.39

197.24 105.30

For the year €nded

Jl March 202.1

For the year ended

Jl lvlarch 2023

(0. l5)
(2.20)

0.53

9.58

NEW DELHI
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(c)

CNH lndustrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statcments for the 1'ear ended 3l March 2024

ReconciliationoftaxexpenseandtheaccountingprofitnrultipliedbyIndia'sdomestictarratefor3l l\larch2024
nnd 3l March 2023:

Profit before tax

Adjustments:
Deffered tax relating to earlier year

Prior year tax expense

Effect ofexpenses/ provisions not deductible in detenniue taxable

profit
Adjusted profit (a)

Ctrrent vear tax expense

Prior year tax expense

Defered tax
Adjusted tax (b)

Applicable tax rale (b/a)

Deferred tax

For the year ended

3l March 2024

779.82

4.17

For the year ended

3l ll'Iarch 2023

2s1 67

(4.61)

t67.29

2.06

783.99 418.41

124.84

72.40

50 8r
42.t0
12.39

197.24 I 05.30

25.170 25.170h

11

Particula rs
As at

3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Deferred tax ass€ts

On Irnpairment loss allowance

On provisiou for gratuity and conrpensated absences - Other than OCI

On provision for bonus and incentive

On Excess Written Dorvn Vahre bef\\,een Conrpanies Act and Income tax Act

On lease lrabilit-v

C)n C)thers

Deferred tax Iiability
- On fair value loss on derivative financial instruments - OCI

- On fair value loss on derivative financial illstruments - Other than OCI

- On Re-nreasurement gain on defined benefit plans - OCI

- On right ofuse assel and lease receivable

Tolal

Movcment of deferred tax assets/ liabilities presented in Balance Sheet:

285. I 3

858
233
040

10.44

69 21

316.51

7.90

398
086
8.68

78.53

100
10 25

2.20

29.62

Ll0
8 71

364.84 434.89

3l ll{arch 2024
As at the

beginning of
the vear

Charge to profit
and loss

Charge 1o Other As at the end ofthe year
Cornprehensive lncome

Deferred tax ass€ts

- On Impairrlent loss allowance

- On provision for gratuiq' and cotnpensated

absences

- On provision lor bonus and incentive

- On Excess Written Dorvn Value ol'
property, plant and equipment betu'een

Companies Act and Incorre 1ax Act

- On lease liability
- On Others

- On fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments - OCI

- On fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments - other than OCI

- On Re-measurement gain on defined beneilt
plans - OCI
- On right ol use assel and lease receivable

3.98

0.86

(l 6s)
(0.46)

376.57

790
(91.44)

068

1.16

(9.37\

29.62

285. r3

8.5 8

I J-)

040

10.44

69.16

8.68

78 53

(2 20)

(2e.62)

(l l0)

(8 71)

2.20

0. 15 (0 e5)

(1025)(l s4)
2.3s

ial 6

-t
.-() a

/.1;t.1
11

NEW DELHI
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CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the 1'ear cndcd 31 l\{arch 2024

l\{ovemenf ofdeferred tax assets/ liabilities prcscnted in Balance Sheet:

As at the
beginning of

the year

Charge to profit
and loss

Charge to Othcr As at the end ofthe year
Conrprehensive Income

31 llarch 2023

Deferred tax assets

- On preliminarv experlses

- On Impainnent loss allowance
- On provision for gratuity and compeusated

absences

- On provision tbr borlus and incentive

- On Excess Written Dorvn Vah.re of
propertv, plant and equipment between

Companies Act aud Incorne tax Act

- On lease liability
- On Others

- On fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments - OCI

- On f'air r.alue loss on derivative financial

instrumenls - other than OCI

- On Re-measurement gaiu on defined benefit
plans - OCI

- On right ofuse asset and lease receivable

Total

0.04

349.04

8,07

(0.04)

27.53

(0. l 7)

0.69

( l.s3)

0.52
(9.47)

(2e.62)

376.57

7.90

3.29

239
3.98

086

8.l6
88.00

738 (9.s8 )

(0.53 )

8.68

78.53

(2.20)

(29.62)

( r. r0)

(8.71)

(0.57)

(8.40) (0.3 l )

457.40 ll 434.89

NEW DELHI



CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Linrited
Notes forming part of financial stltements for the year endcd 3l March 2024

(All amounts are in Rupees Millions except share data and unless otJlent'ise stdled)

2.8 (a) Propertl', plant and equipment

*also refer to note 2.30

Particulars Computers
Furnitures and

fixtures
Right of use

Building*
Right of use

\rehicles*
Total

Cost

At I April 2022

Additions

Disposals

4.90

(2.7s)

0.22

0.07

24.17

0.28

(0.s l)

7.53

t0.77

(2.44)

36.82

tt.t2
(s.70)

At 3l l\{arch 2023

Additions

Disposals

2.15 0.29 23.94

0.30

(0.28)

15.86

22.82

(6.s8)

42.24

23.12

(6.86)

At 3l l\larch 2024

Depreciation and amortisation

Atl April2022
Additions
Disposals

2.15

4.28

0.47
(2.75\

0.29

0.07

0.02

23.96

0.58

5.07

(0.32)

32.10

4.64

3.39
(2.42)

58.s0

9.57

8.95
(5.49)

At 3l Nlarch 2023

Additions
Disposals

2.00

0.1 I

0.09

0.03

5.33

s.04

(0.28)

5.61

8.84

(4.72)

13.03

14.02
(s 00)

At 31 Nlarch 2024

Net block

At 3l March 2023

At31 March2024

2.lt

0.ls
0.04

0.12

0.20

0.17

10.09

18.61

13.87

9.73

10.25

22.37

22.05

29.21

36.45
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 3l Nlarch 2024

(All amounts are in Rupees Millions excepl share data qnd unless otherwise stated)

2.8 (b) Intangible assets

us trl47

it
{J

)t
-:::
(L

t)
0trc

Particulars Software Total

Cost

Atl April2022
Additions
At 31 March 2023

Additions

At 3l March 2024

Depreciation and amortisation

At I April2022
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2023

Charge for the year

At 3l March 2024

Net block

At 31 March 2023

At 3l March 2024

96.79

40.81

96.79

40.81

137.60 137.60

t37.60

91.90
7.65

137.60

91.90

7.65

99.55

14.73

99.55

14.73

114.28

38.05

23.32

tt4.28

38.05

23.32

NEW DELHI



CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part offinancial statements for the year ended 3l \I*ch2024
2.9 Other non-fi nancial assets

Particulars
As at

3I l\,Iarch 2024

As at
3l l\{arch 2023

Prepaid expense (considered good)

Insurance claim receivables (considered doubtful)

Advance to suppliers

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Advance to cmployees

Considered good

Considered doubtful

Goods and sen,ice tax receivable (net off-)

Provision for doubtful debts

Total

2.10 Other Payables

8. r4

1.66

13 95

2l.27
189

10 83

r00

0.53

018
0.sl
4.06

37 94 3l .s7
(3 73) (5 06)

67.88 56.86

Particulars As at
3l N'larch 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Other payables

MSME
Others

Total

Other Payables aging schedul€

As at 3l March 2024

As at 3l l\lnrch 2023

* Please ref-er note no. 2.31.

Note: There is no outstanding 1br more thar, 3 years as on 3 I March 2024 and 3l March 2023.

aJ

001

78 80

0.48

92.57

78.81 93.0s

rlstri4

*

b

Particulars

Outstanding for followinq Deriods from due date of payment
Total

Not due

Less than I
Year 1 -2 r'ears 2-3 vears

i) MSME*
iit Others 68.30 8.86 1.63 0.01 78.80

iii) Disputed

dues -
MSME* 0.01 0 0l

iv) Disputed

dues - Others

Total 68.30 8.87 1.63 0.01 78.81

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment
Total

Not due

Less than I
year I -2 vears 2-3 vears

i) MSME+
ii) Others 86.02 6.12 0.22 0.2t 92.57

iii) Disputed

dues -
MSME* 048 048

iv) Disputed

dues - Others

TOTAL 86.02 6.12 0.70 0.2r 93.05

NEV! DELHI
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2.lt

Cn'H Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notcs fornring part of financial statements for the year cndcd 3 | Nla rch 202;l

Debt securities (measured at amortised cost)

Particulars As rt
3l l\'larch 2024

As at
3l Nlarch 2023

At amortised cost (Unsecured)

Commercial paper ( uet of urrarnorlised discountins charge:r )

Total

6l
1,171.61

*Tlre Company had issued Cornnrercial paper carq'ing an inlerest rate o{ 7.99ot per annllnt pa1'able on quarterl)' basis. The Corntrercial

Paper rvas repavable in 25 June 2024.

2.12 Borrowings (nreasured at aurol'tised cost) (Unsecured)

Particula rs As at
3l llarch 202,1

As at
3l l\larch 2023

Temr loans from banks (refler note 1 belorv)

Working capital loans frotn banks (refer note I belorv)

Bank overdrall (refer note 3 bclou,)

Extenral Commercial Borrotlings (refer note 4 belori')

lllterest accnred on borrorvings

Total (A)

Borrowings in India

Bonorvings Outside lndia

Total (B)

Secured

Unsecured

Total (C)

Note I : Tenrs and conditions of repal rrent of tenn loan liolrr banks:

Jl l\{arch 2024

Loan and ROl Nlaturitv date lntcrcst Paymcnt

7,804 62

2-720.00

939.31

305

e,304.26

3-000 00

1.538 90

28.05

I I,466.98 t 3.871.2 r

I 1.466 98 12.314.96

556 25

I I 
'.166.98

13,871.2r

I 1 .466 98 I 3.871 .21

I I,466.98 t3,87t.21

Temr loan I - ROI 5.45%

Tenn loan 2 - ROI 5.45%

Tenn loan 3 - ROI 5.459'0

Tenn loan 4 - ROI 6.309b

Tenr loan 5 - ROI 6.3090

Term loan 6 - ROI 6.20%

Tenn loan 7 - ROI 5.95ouo

Tenn loan 8 - ROI 5.7596

Tenn loan 9 - ROI 5.70or

Temr loan 10 - ROI 4.99o.'o

''l'cnnloan ll -ROI 499ori'

Tenn loan l2 - ROI 4.50o,o

Temr loan l3 - ROI 4.50o,b

Tenn loan l4 - ROI 4.50o./"

Term loan l5 - ROI 4.309/"

Ternr loan l6 - ROI 4.509b

Tenr loan l7 - ROI 4.70ozo

Term loan l8 - ROI 4 709/"

Temr loan l9 - ROI 6.25%

Tenn loan 20 - ROI 7.05%

Term loan 2l - PtOl T.77Yo

Tel- loan 22 - ROI 7.88%

Tenn loan 23 - ROI 8.00ozo

Term loan 2zl - ROI 8.05ozb

Temr f oan 25 - ROI7.79%
Tenr loan 26 - ROI 7.25?6

Termloan2T -ROl725o/o
Term loan 28 - ROI 7.2592o

Tenn loan 29 - ROI 7 25ol.

Amount 0utstanding as

on 3l llarch 2024

40.95

5l l9
93 14

i0.00
750

I 80.00

207.00

19.96

19.98

89.75

89 75

li0 00

64.00

65 00

151 00

92.00
J)J TJ

120.00

699.00

464.97

317 50

800.00

400 00

400.00

467 00

931 .99

279 60

700.00

550.00

ustrta/

Principal Repaymcnt
Terms

Quanerl)'

Quarterll

Quanerly

Quarterll'

Quanerlv

Quarlerlv

Quarterll'

Quarterl)'

Quarterll'

Quanerh,

Quarterll'

Quanerll'

Quanerh'

Quarteril'

Quarterll'

Quafterh

Quarterll

Quarterll

Quanerll'

Quarterly

Quarterh

Quarterlv

Quarlerl)'

Quanerll

Quarterl)'

Quarterl)

Quarterl),

Quarterh'

Quarterll'

3 I -05-2024

3l-05-2024
l4-06-2024

07-10-2024

13-t0-2024

30-l l-2024
3t-1)-2024
30-03-2025

30-04-2025

25-06-2025

30-06-2025

i0-09-2025
30-09-2025

30-0e-2025

30- I 2-2025

3t-12-2025
3t-12-2025

:8-02-2026
30-06-2026

27-10-2026

)9-12-2026
15-01-2027

29-03-2027

3t-03-2027

30-05-2027

2.6-10-2027

30-10-2027

27-02-2028

I 9-03-2028

Terms
Monthll'
Monthly

Monthly

Monthli,

Monthly

Monthll'
Monthll'
Monthly

Monthly

MonthJy

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly
Monthb,

Monthly

Monthll,

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly

Monthll,

Monthly

Monthly

Monthly
Monthly

Monthly
Monthll'

.J

clJ i\
br\

NEW DELHI :l J



CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial stateme nts for the year ended 31 March 2024

3l March 2023

Loan and ROI

Terr.n loan I - ROI 5-45%

Term loan 2 - ROI 5.45%

Term loan 3 - ROI 5.45%

Tenn loan 4 - ROI 6.30%

Term loan 5 - ROI 6.30%

Tem loan 6 -ROI 6.20%

Term loan 7 - ROI 5.95%

Ternr loan 8 - ROI 5.75%

Term loan 9 - ROI 5.70%

Ternr loan l0 - ROI 4.99%

Termloan ll -ROI 4.99%

Term loan l2 - ROf 4.50%

Tenn loan l3 - ROI 4.50%

Term loan l4 - ROI 4.50%

Terr.n loan l5 - ROI 4.30%

Term loan l6 - ROI 4.50%

Tenr loan 17 -ROI 410%
Term loan l8 - ROI 4.70%

Term loan 19 -ROI 6.25%

Ternr loan 20 - ROI 7.05%

Term loan 2l - ROI 7.77%

Terrn loarr 22 -ROl 7.88%

Term loarr 23 - ROI 8.00%

Term loan 24 - ROI 8.05%

N{aturity date

31-05-2024

31-0s-2024
t4-06-2024
t0-07-2024
13-10-2024

30-11-2024

3t-t2-2024
30-03-202s

30-04-2025

2s-06-2025

30-06-202s

30-09-2025

30-09-2025

30-09-2025

30-12-2025

3t-12-2025
3t-12-2025
28-02-2026

30-06-2026
27-10-2026

29-12-2026

t5-01-2027

29-03-2027

3l-03-2027

Interest Payment
Terms

Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly
Monthly

Amount Outstanding as

on 3l N{arch 2023

204 76

255,95

279.43

280.00

107.50

s00.00

555.00

179.97

119.98

420.75

420.'75

478.00

238.00

239.00

395.00

r 96.00

366 67

360 00

1,071 .00

653.00

383.50

800.00

400.00

400 00

Principal Repayment
Terms

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterll'

Quarterly

Quarterl.v

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly
Quarterll,

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Quarterly

Note 2 - The Companl,has taken unsecured short tenn rvorking capital loans from banks at van,ing rate ofinterest ranging lrom 7.75o/oto

8.00% per annum (3 I March 2023 : 4.4l%o to 7 .40o/o per annum).

Note 3 - The Cornpany avails bank overdraft facility to manage its short term capital and is repayable on detnand. The rate ofinterest during

the year ranged fronr 7 .25o/o to 7 .25Vo per arlnum (3 1 March 2023: 5.00% to 7 .25%o per annum).

Note 4 - The Cornpan-v has issued External Cornmercial Borrorvings carrying an interest rate of 7 .80% & 6.65% per annum payable on

quarterly basis. The External Commercial Borrorvings is repayable till 28 March 2024 in quarlerly instalntents starting from 30 October

2021.

Note 5 - The Cornpany has obtained borro'a,ing liom banks and linancial irrstitutiorrs and utilised them for the purpose for which they'rvere

obtained.

2.13 Other financial liabilities

Particulars
As at

3l March 2024
As at

3l March 2023

Loan pending disbursement

Payable to emplovees

Interest-free security deposit received

Advance received from dealer

Lease Iiabilities
Total

649.56

1 3.90

024
27.64

4l,48

638.4'7

r 9.83

0.24

I 1.93

34.49

NEW DELHI
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the I'ear ended 3l March 2024

2.14 Provisions

Particulars As at
3l i\farch 2024

As at
31 llarch 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity*

Compensated absences

Total
* also refer note no.2.29

2.15 Other non-financial liabilities

17.02

13.08

13.80

r 3.03

30.r0 26.83

Particulars As at
3l lr{arch 2024

As at
3l l\{arch 2023

Statutory dues pa1'able

- Tax deducted at source payable

- Provident fund payable

- Labour welfare fund payable

- Goods and service tax payable (net offl
Total

8.37

1.84

0.01

1.06

14.75

1.85

0.02

0.84
t 1.28 t7.46

NEW DELHI



CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notes forming palt of financial statements for the I ear ended 3 l trlrrch 2024

(,411 utltoliltls urc in llupaas l\.lillion: etccpl shurc tlulu und unlt:ss olhetTise .\luled)

2,16 Dquitl, Share Capital

Details of .{uthorized, lssued, Subscribcd and Paid ut) Share Capital

Pailiculars
.{s at 3l Nlarch 2024

No ofshare Amount
r\s at f,l March 2023

No ofshare Amount

Authorized share Capital
Equity Shares ofRs. l0i- each 3q7.200.000 3.972.00 397.200.000 3.972.00

397,200,000 3,972.00 397.200,000 3,972.00

Issued. Subscribed and Paid un Canital
Equitv Shares ofRs. l0n each 3q7,200.000 I 972 00 397.200.000 3.572.00

Total 397,200,000 1.972.00 397.200.000 3,972.O0

(i) l'he reconciliation of equitl shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

As at 3l Nlarch 2024

Number of Shares Amount
As at 3l I\{arch 2023

Particuhrs
N-umber of Shares Amount

EqurN Share at the begiilning of),ear

Add: Shares issued during tlte year

397,100,000 j,971.00 397,200,000 3,972..00

EouitY Share at the end of veat' 397,200,000 3.972.00 J97.200"000 3.972.00

(ii) Rights, preferences and rcstrictions attached to shares

The Conrpany has only one class ol equity shares havi ng a par val ue ol Rs. I 0 per share. Each shareholder is el igi ble for one vole per share held.

(iii) Shales hekl bt holding Compan)'

Name of thc shareholder'
As at 3l lvlarch 2024

h*o. of shar€s 7u of holdins
As at 3l March 2023

No. of shares Yo of holding

CNH Industrial (1ndia) PriVate Limited 3q7.200.000 10Oori, 397.200.000 I 007o

397.200.000 r00% 397.200.000

beneficial interesl. lhe above shareholding represenls both legal and beneficial oruretships ofsltares.

There is no change in percentage ofshare holding during tlte 1'ear.

(i\') Details ofshares held bl Promotels

As at 3l ['larch 2024

1009/"

Pronrotcr Name beginning of the year
No. of shares at th€ Change during the No. of slrares at the 70 of total shares %u change during the

end of the ]'earyear ! car

CNH lndustrial (lndia)

PriVale Limited 39?.200,000 397.100,000 1000/i, 00

As at 3l l\{arch 2023

Promoter Name beginning of th€ year
No. ofshares at the Change during the

year
No. of shares at the

end of the vear

(zo of total shares 7u change during the
year

CNH lDdustrial (hldia)
PriVate Limited 397.200,000 397,200,000 100% o%

(v) Details ofshareholders hokling more than 5ol) shares in the Company

As at 3l Nlarch 2024 As at 3l March 2023

No. of shares 7o of holdins
Name of the shareholder

No. of shares ol' of holdins
CNH lndustrial (lndia) Privale Limiled
(alonswrth its nomiDee)

397,200,000 1 00?" 397,200,000 lOOozir

397,200,000 tooot 397.200.000

As per records ofthe Company. including its register ofshareholden/ members and other declarations received from sharcholders legarding

beueficial interesl. the above shareholding represents both legal and belleficial ownerships ofshares.

l00o/o

us

eo
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*
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part offinancial statements for the Iear ended 3l N{arch 2024

2.17 Other equity

Particulars As at

3l l\Iarch 2024

As at
3 I l\larch 2023

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year

Add: Transferred tiorn Other comprehensive incorne

Less: Transfened to Statutory Resene

Balancc at thc end ofthe ycar (A)

Cash Florv hedge resen'e

Opening balance

Add: Transferred from Other comprehensive inconre

Balance at the cnd of the year (B)

Statutory Rescrve

Opening balance

Add: Addition durirrg the year

Balance at the end ofthe year (C)

280.76

s82.5 8

(0.4s)

( 1 I 6.s2)

160.47

148.37

1.59

(29.67)

746.37 280.76

6.s3

(6.53)
(21.97)

28.50

0.00 6.s3

90.81

n6.52
207.32 90.81

Total (.{) + (B) + (C) 953.70 378. I 0

2.17 (i) Nature and purpose of reserve

Statutory reserre u/s 45-lC of RBI Act
UnderSeotion45-lCoftheRBIAct, l934,theCornpanyisrequiredtotransfersuml'lotlessthantwentyperceutofitsuetprollteveryyear
Accordingll,, the Cornpanl, has transfbrred the above arnount to the statutor_\, reserve for the year ended 3 I March 2024.

Retained earnings
Retained eamings or accumulated surplus represer-rts total of all profits retained since the Cornpanl,'s inception. Retairred eamirrgs are

credited rvith current year profits, reduced by losses. ilany, dividend payouts, transfers to Gerleral reserve or any such other appropriations
to specific reserves.

Cashflow hedge reservc
It represents the cumulative gains/llosses) arising orl revaluation ofthe derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges through OCI

+

61.14

29.67

dusc.

(\
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CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for thc year ended 3 I i\larch 2024

(All untounls arc in lktpaas ltlillions ck'ept shure dalu urld unl6s othe|,ise stulcd)

2.18 lnterest income (on fiDancial assets rreasured at alnoftised cost)

Particulars
l-or the yeal'ended

3l March 2024

For the y€ar ended

3l lUarch 2023

luterest on loails
lnterest on term deposits

Total

2.19 Fees Income

1.3 13.91

9.21

1 r.o /a
ll54

2,323.t2 2,240.96

Particulars
For the year ended

31 March 2024

For the year endetl
3l Nlarch 2023

Fees aud other charges income (includirtg boutce charge income)

Total

2.20 Other Income

88.58 83.66

88.58 8.1.66

Particulars
l-or the year ended

3l March 2024

For the year ended

3l Nlarch 2023

Business Supporl Sen'ices

lnleresl income olr financial assets l]reasured al fair value

Gain on derccognition ofleases
Net gain on foreign currrncy lransaction

luterest lncome on lncome ta)i refund
Liability no longer required rvritten back

Provision no longer required rvrilten back

Total

2.21 Finance costs

14.89

0.64

0.04

0.68

12. l3
0.71

0.0s

9.03

4.53

1.34

17.59 26.45

Particulars
For the year €nded
3l l\{arch 2024

For the l ear ended

3l Iuarch 2023

luterest expense on borrowings fiom banks (measured at alnofiised costl
- on ternl loalrs and working capilal loans fronr banks

- on bonds

- on bank overdraft
Discounting charges on conunercial papcr

hrlerest on lease liabilities

Other boffou,irg costs

Total

2.22 Impairment on fin$ncial instruments

802.46 843.80

16.01

4.58

2.68

12.23

12.65

55.1 5

3.41

I t.46

88s.r3 879.30

Particulars

l'or the year ended
3l March 2024

For the yeal ended

3l Ntarch 2023

lmpairment on financial instruments at amortised cost

- I-oans

Loss on sale olrcposscsscd asscts lincluding Lrad debts wLitten oll)

(363 29)

523.64

123.t7

-170.38

3

b
7 o1e N\)

O

*
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Total 160.3s 59f,.55



CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2024

(All antounts are in Rupees Millions except share dala and unless othenpise stated)

2.23 Employee benefit expenses

Particulars

For the year ended

3l March 2024

For the ]'ear ended

3l March 2023

Salaries. wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuify and compensated absences (refer note 2.29)

Staffwelfare expenses

Total

2,24 Depreciation and amortisation

247.61

10.73

5.7 5

4.33

246.0t
t0.t0
2.88

4.t9

268.42 263.18

Particulars

For the 1'ear ended

3l March 2024

For the vear ended

31 March 2023

Depreciation on property, plant and equiprnent

Depreciation on right ofuse assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Total

2.25 0ther expenses

0. l4
13.88

t4.73

0.49

8.46

7.65

28.75 16.60

Particulars

F'or the year ended

3l March 2024

l'or the year ended

3l March 2023

Legal and Professional charges*

Repairs and maintenance

Travelling and couve)'ance

Rent

Rates and taxes

Business promolion and advertisenrenl

Printing and stationen,

Communication

Cor.nmission

Pavment to auditors**

Corporate Social Responsibil ity (CSR)* * *

Provision for doubtful debts (net)

Net loss on foreign currency transaction

Bank Charges

Miscellaneous expelrses

Total

*includes outsourced agency cost of Rs. 1 5 L 8 7 Mill ions (previous year Rs. I 8 7.3 7 Millions)

**Pavment to Auditors
- StattltoD' audit

- Tax audit
- Other services

- reimbursement of expenses

- cosl ofgoods and service tax

214.20

40.10

14.22

3.56

0.07

0.31

5.6s

3.87

12.51

3.83

4.17

2.s0
l.83

243.67

43.05

17.08

3.01

0.05

2.22

s.24

4.61

t2.79
2.34

2.28

1.89

1.28

2.95

2.31

306.82 344.77

160
0. 15

1.77

0.04

0.27

1.50

0. l5
0.48

0.0 r

0.20

t
t

3.83 2-34



CNH lndustrial Capital (lndia) Private Limitcd
Notes forming part offinancial statements for the 1'ear cnded 3l llarch 2024

(All amounts are in Rupees \4illions etcepl share dalo and unless olltentise stated)

*** Corporatc Social Rcsponsibility (CSR)

Particulars 3l-Mar-24 3l-Nlar-23

Amount required to be spent by the Companl' during the 1'ear 417 219

Arnount ol expenditure incurred l.l0 0.68

Shortthll at the end ofthe year 3.07 1.50

Total ofprevious years shortfall L50

Arnount ofexpenditure incurred pertaining to previous year shortfall 1.60

Reason for shortt-all Project identifi cation and

finalisation ofthe
lmplementing agenc)/ was

dull, cornpleted during the

1,ear; the shortfall relates to

projects rilrich are ongoing

projects.

Companv has already

entered into alr agreement

rvith agency "Social
Empowerment and

Econornic Developnrent"

for the CSR activities and

is in the process ol
incurring the expenditure

subsequent to thc -vear end,

Nature of CSR activities

Education Seclor and

Sustainable Livelihood
Impafi vocational trainings
to el'npo\\'er youth under

debt Recoven'Aeent
Program

Details ofrelated partv transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant

Accounting Standard NA NA

Movenrent in the Provision of Co

Particulars
Provison at the beginning ofthe 1'ear

Add: Additions during the year

Less: Utilisation during the year

Closing provision at the end of the year

Social
3 l-l\lar-24

1.60

4.17

270

3l-l\'lar-23

228
0.68

3.0? t.60

2.26 Earning per sharc

Particulars

For the year endcd
3l March 2024

For thc 1,ear cnded
3I March 2023

Follou'ingreflects the prolit /(loss) and share data used in EPS computations

Basic
Weighted average number of equity shares fbr computation of Basic EPS

Net (loss) / profit for calculation ofbasic EPS

Basic carning per share (In Rs.)

Diluted
Weighted average number o1'equity shares for cornputation of Diluted EPS

Net (loss) i profit for calculation ofDiluted EPS

Diluted oarning per share (ln Rs,)

Nominal value of equity shares (ln Rs.)

$(\u s t

397.200.000

5 82.58

397.200.000

148.37

1.47 0.37

397,200.000

582 58

397.200.000

148 37

1.17 0-37

C
'-)

+ 9l

AA\\

10.00 10.00



CNH lndustrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notes forming part offinancial statements for the year ended 3l March 2024

("'1ll eilloilnls urc in llupacs Millions cxctpl share ddlu und xnlcs.\ olhctv,isc .\tute.1)

2.27: Derivativc Financial Instruments

Part I

.{s at March 31,2024

Notional Amounts Fair Value Ass€ts Notional Amounts
Fair Value
l.irhilifiec

Amount Amount Amount Amount

Currency DeriYativcs:

-Cross Cunencv Srvaps

Total derivative fi nancial instrunents

Part ll

As at March 3l, 2024

Notional Amounts Fair Value Assets Notional Amounts
Fair Value
Liabilities

Amount Amount Amount Amount

lncluded in above are derivativcs held for hedsing and risk
Cash florv hedsins:
-Cross Cunencv Swaps

Total dcrivative fi nancial instruments

Part I

As at March 31,2023

Notional Amounts Frir Vrlue Assets Notional Amounts
Fair Value
l,iabilities

Amount Amount Amount Amount

Currerrcv Derivatives:
-Cross Cunencv SrvaDs 1.420.54 126.42

Total derivative fi nancial instruments 1,420.54 126.42

Paft ll
As at March 31,2023

Notional Amounts Fair Value Ass€ts h"otional Amounts
Fair Value
Liabilities

Amount Amount Amount ,{mount
lncluded in above are derivatives held for hedsins and risk
Cash flow hedging:
-Cross Cunencv SwaDs 1.420.54 126.42

Total derivative fi nancial instruments 1.420.54 t26.42

2.27.1: Hedging 
^ctivities 

and derivatives

risk and foreign cunency risk.

2.27,2: Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

(a) Cash flow h€dges

Bonorvings.

Tlre Cornpany designates such connacts in a cash flou, hedging relationship b1, applying the hedge accounting principles as per lND AS. These contracts are

exercised, or no longer qualifies lbr hedge accounting.

hedging relationships as th€ ulderlyirg risk ofthe Cross Ctrnency Swap contracts are identical to the hedged risk conrponelts.

As at I\'larch 31. 2024

Particulars Notional amounts Carrying amount

Line item in the
statem€nt of

financial

Dosition

Change in
fair value

Cash flon'hedge
reserve as at

l\larch 31, 2024

The impact ofCash florv hedge (Nct)
Derivative Financial

Asset

As at March 3l, 2023

Cash flow hedge

r€serve as al
March 31,2023

Particulars Notional amounts Carrying amount

Line item in the
statem€nt of

financial
position

Change in
fair valuc

The inlDact ofCash flou hedqe (Nct)
--#;-\-

1.420.54
Derivative Firancial
l\ Asset

38.08 6.53

4
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CM Induslrinl Canital (lndia) Prilre Limiled
Norcs fornring pan offfnancill ilaremcnls for lh( ).ar cndcd 3I March 2021

t.lll ank\ilils arc n, Rilt t!.\li0ioils Lx.tt \har..ldtd oill ililless oilkr1rts. statudt

2.28 Rslded Par$ disclosurei

A. NAmc ofrclst.d larl! nnd rclationship

I. Ultin'rl. holding and Holdins Comprn]
CNll LrhNlrinl N V rljlbnNc holiln8 comprn])

cNll Lilusrnrl (ftrni) l'ri\ill. I-nnil&l (lkidiDS comprn\ I

2. Suhilinry conp{nles ofullimrte holline ComIanI {fcllorr sulsi(liaric$)

Casc NN llrlland ConstnEtron UqiliFrnsx lxlia (l'ri'rlc) l.iuLcd
cNIl lnduslnal Iinlncial Seniccs SA

Co)lil.lS Socicl. CorolilcI'cr.vklri (CoDLIrls S C.l'A l

I:CAITET4 S.PI
lVl:C() Ciprill Soliltor S I) A
CNll Indush.l capil{l Auslrha Irl Y l-nnired

CNtl lndustial T.cluologl senrdr thdr) It^.t'I-nililld
lc linrncral scni..s s A

l. Kcl mAnsgcment pe.srnncl

Mshrl clDudlNry I MdDdgrng ])trcckr' $ .c. I :7 laDxlrl llr:2 )

Itaonak Venna {Resi8ncd liom I)icckr$'e I il JarDn:021}
NanodcrMitlal (l)n.cbr\rcl l(l ljcbnHl 2(r:3)

l)il'rl Jdmcs MCl A(i(iART llhet!)
MrFrosh$nr Prils.d Singh {I)ncckr)
Indcried Nteh, (ChrcltiDancnl Olllcer )

itini JuDgid (ConDla seer.raq \ c.I l5 flbnm{ :02:)
l\nlai (iwra (l)ir.rror\\ c f 3l }nilln 2021)

l. Enlcrpriscs und$ sipificrnl influcncc ol lhc kr) mtrn.scmcnt pc$onncl (\tirh $ftom thcrc \(rc tmnrrclions duhg lhc }t!r)

5- Rclalirc of kcl nranrgcmcni pcrsonncl (Nilh r h(trn lfthsaclion\ du ring lh( I c{ r)

B. Thcnrtorclndrolomcoftr{nsrctionsc$ricdoulidoirsrandingbalanr($iththcrhov(rehlcdparllcsinihc.rdinrrcours.ofhusincssarcrsfolkNs

Namc offthicd Iartr-' Nslurc of!!nsrcli,,ns r Anril rorr r. rr trr.r4k rntl

CNll hdustrral (LaI.r llrutc I-nnncd

hconrc tion) sutll$sc olllurlJm8 1.52 r) 23

I{cnnhr senrcm ol.\Drtr{' 870

lntr".r li.m lln{nn is s,'nnon S.ria\ Hll
!ntcre{ on i}ans / r$cnilblc**

iilsrNc$ lloll.DdCoNtrl'ctonlifntncnl ltlr lnh?ct dn h,Ds / 
'.r.'\,LL,+*

[0 0t
I clrl xrd lloli'sshDl.hdocs

I.nil,nn Prtnn{snnl.inn,q J2l

Vli(l() ( aDil.l So[nron Sl)A tJ1 ! I:

R.Dxns rnd M.inle.rncc

lN"ll lndn$rdl cdtilul Aurtrl! I'l Y Luxlcd l-c$l !nd I'rollssronul ohartos

In,rrft lirnn ltil.nr!(\ SDDDdrl S.r\r..s

lNll hdnslnrl Ieohndl'gl Srnlccs llndra) Itcnnh$serML.l ll)s lt 8l

RcDilmcntrontaid lo kc\ rnJnagcn,l pcrsonDcl
Shof, l.m dntk,\cc hnelils

Nrmc ofrchtcd plrti Nltu.c oftmnsacli,nr
P.ri.nl fr.trr

I ADdl 21122 lo 3l Nl^rth 2023 3l Nlrrch 2023

Olhrrr

iNlI lrdushnl (hrlir) Ih\ir! LiDril.d

knm li.nr $illloso ol hilldn,! 151
ll Ilr

nrf,.{ lnnD l}Nin.ss snDnon sc^,.cs

Lilcrcsl on ha$ /rcccirrhlc++ 11 11

CaseNc$ IhlhndconsrrucuoDliNp'ncill hdra nx.d.n loins / 
'.cciubl!+r

l.cql lnd l'r.tb'il,ndl (hrr!(.

.n,l rnd hnli\snn,rl chr,[\ rr.l3

(i 751

lVl:{l( ) (l.nilNl S.ltrlinr Sl'A 012

3.81

Itetrnnrerluotr prid ro k.\ rnrnd8cndl prsonDcl
ihon trn eul[,\ce l{Dclils

-lt 51

Trrms ,nd Conditiors oft.rnrsclfttns silh rclrtcd paili$:

abor. r c[ esena ]ab,lil\ ta\ ilblc and posilr\ . bd linuc rcpr$cills ass.ls r(o\tftbl.

t a

a)

0
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cNH lndxslrirl Capilnl (lndia) Prita(e Liilited
Notesformingprrt of financialstatemenlsfortheyearendedf,l N'larch 2024

lAlI tnrililils arc in llilt)&t /.lilliuns ev?N :haft data ond ilnlcss othaftts. stat?d)

2.29 Enrplolee benefils

Defi ned contribntion plans:

Amondt of Rs. I (r.68 Mil lions lprc\ ious \ car Rs. I {) 06 Millions) pc(aining to ctrlplo\ris contribution to prcrid.nt fiilil is rocognised as m c\pcnsc trd
jncludod in "Clonlnbulion lo pro\ ldcnt flnxls" in notu 2.23 lo lhe fiDilicial strtcnrunts.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity plan)

TheCompotrhNndcfincdbcncfitgratuit\plan E\encmplo\cc\\hohscoD)plclcdfirc\canornroltofscniccgctsagratuit\ondePalurcat15da\s
salan (last dm\n salal ) for each conplctcd lcar ofscn icc subicct lo srch limit 6 prcscilbcd b{ Thc Paynrcnt ofGEtrit\ Act. I 972 t anandcd j}om tjlnc

to tiNc. Thc Schcnlc is unfundcd. Thc Cornpal has also pror ided for )ong-tcm co[pcDsatcd abscnccs shich arc unfunded.

The follosing tables silnrmaries the compon€nts of net benefit erpcnse recognised in the statenr€nt of profit or loss and an)ounls recognised in [he

balnnre sh€et for lhe grotuity plan:

(a) Changes in the present Ialue ofthe defined benefit obligatioil
{DBO) rre as follows:

Defined benclit obligation at lhe beginning oflhe)ear
Acquisiliotr adjustncnl

IrtrcN_sl cosl

Cunlrl scrlicc cost

Bcncfits paid

Acruanil {garn)/ loss or ohh!alions

Defined benefit obligation al (he end oflhe !ear

(b) Amotrnt recognised in Statenenl of Profit and Loss:

Curcnl scr\icc cosl

Acquisilion adjuslnenl
hrlcrcst cost

Ailrount rccognised in Statenrent of Profit and Loss

(c) Amounf rccognised iil Other Comprehensive lnconre;

Actuarial Gain).4oss
Arnount rccogniscd in Olhcr ComprchcDsi!c IIrcoDtc

kl) Change in Net Defined Benefit Obligalion:

Totrl Scnicc Cost

Intcrcsl cosl

Acuadal (gain),rloss

Bcn.fits pxid

Tolrl

The assumplions used in delernlining gratuit] liabilitv for the

Conpany's plans nre shosn belo\r:

Discount ralc

Fuftuc salary lrrcrcue

Wilhdm\\al ratc

Up lo i0 \'carc

Fron i I to .1.1 )eaF
FrcDi.+J \cils

Rclirrmcnt Agc

l\'lonalit\ ratc

Scrl icc Cost

r_cl hilcrcsl Cosl

Expecled expense for the ncxt nnnual r€porling period

Erpcri€nce {djuslments for the reporled years art as bclow:

Chturgc in dcnrogmphic 6sunrptions

Chmgc in finmciais ssunlptions
E\pcricncc adjustnonls on plan liabilities

ComDeilsit€d absences:

Thc Compil\ has proriclcd for conrpcnsatory lcavcs (ircludiilg sick learc) u pcr polic) ofthe
ofar actudal laluation. Thc Courpan\ has accordingh boolud Rs.0.93 Millions (pre\ioils

As al As rt
3l ltlarch 202{ 3l March 202J

'7 .25v. 1 .361',/'

89; tir;

29"
t9i
60

t00,r/o of lALl\4
(20 r 2-l 1)

60

1 00')i' ofIALN4

{2r)12-t4)

As ol
3l ltarch 202.1

As at
3l Mirch 2023

13 80

(0 28)

t.02
-1.0 I

(1. I i)
0 6{)

0.95

(l.86)
(2.t2t

t3 20

t1.02 t3ao

Forthe rearended
3l ilrrch 2024

For the l-'€rr €nded
3l MArch 2023

f ()l :.6i

095
('.28)
L0l
4.75 4Sfl

For Ihe year ended

3l Nlarch 2021

For thc year ended
3l Mrrch 2023

0 6t) tl t2\
o.60 (2.t21

3l March 202.{ 31 March 2023
.l.{) I

l,02
060

(r. I 3)

i.63
0.95

(2. t2)
( l 86)

3.50 0.60

lc)

suppl\ md dcmiltd in the cnlplo\mcnt mtrLet. Assumprions rcgarding fulurc nroialit\ arr bscd on tho publishcd slatistics ard moialil) lablcs. Thc

calculation ofthe dcfincd bcncfit obligation is sunsiti\c lo thc nro[alit\ ssumPlions.

Thcar.cragcdurationolthcdcfincdtrcrcfitplanobligatioDatthccndofthcrcportiDspcriodislT.lT\.ars(Frcvious!car:17.-15\.ars).

(0 A quanlilative sensitilil) analysis for significant assumption:
3l Nlarch 2024 31 Msrch 2023

Assnmptions
lncrrrse in discounl ralc of(1.509n ( L l8) () 96)

I)ccrcasc in discotrnt rxlc of(1.509" 1 29 l (1.\

hcrcasc in Iitrrrc salctl ol0.5l)9i, I 27 I 0'l

Dccrcsc in i{urc salarJ of0.50r' (1.17) (0 96)

Thc scnsiti\it! aDal\sis abo\e havc bccD dclcnrincd bascd on i mcthod tha( c\tupolotcs thc inpact on dc6ncd bcnofit obligalion as a Nsull ofrcasonablo

chatrgcs in kc\ assumptioDs occutritrg al thc cnd ofthu rcpofring pciod.

Sons'lirilics dur lo lnonalit\ and \vilhdri\\rls arc insr.gnificatr and hcncc ignorcd

applicablc bciilg a lunlp sunr bcncfil on rclircorcnl.

Erpccted conlribiltioil for the next Annual repoding pcriod As nt
3l NtArch 2024

As at
3l Msrch 2023

167
r .13

.l.51

l0l
5.90 5.54

As at
3l Nlrrrh 2024

As al

(l 2(,

014
(r 35)

l.11)

Unit CNdir Mcrhod on thc
thc Stalonlcnl of Prcfit aDd

a)

€
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Cr*H lndustrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended Jl March 2024

(All aDrourts are in Rupees Millions except share data atrd unless othen'ise stated)

2.30 Lenses

Company as a lessee

Company enters itlto operating lease affangeurents for leasing offices and vehicles for its eutplol,ees. The Company also has cefiain lease for lorv

value items like laptops. The Compary applies the lou' r'alue exernptions for lhese leases.

The Life ofROU assets is as follol's

Asset Class Period

Buildins I -5 I'ears

\4otor vehicles l -{ vears

The Company has entered into cancellable operating lease arrarrgements pdnalily for rcntal buildings and Vehicles. The leases are generally

rcuervable ou the expiry oflease period subject to mutual aglrcemerrt.

Set out below arc the calryiug auroults ofriglrt-ofiuse assets recoguised atrd tlre mo\,€ments duing the period:

Buildings Vehicles TotalParticulars
At I April 2022

Additions

Disposals in existing contlacls (uet)

Depreciation expense

At 3l March 2023

Additions

Disposals iD existing coutracts (net)

Depreciation expense

At 3l March 2024

Opening balanc€

Additions

Disposal

Accretion ofilterest
Pa),ments

Closing balancc

23.59

0.28
(0. l9)
tsoll

2.89

t0.77
(0.02)
/1 1q\

26.48

I 1.05

(0.21)
(R 46\

18.6t I 0.25 28.86

0.30 22.82

(r 86)
(8.84)

23.12

( 1.86)

( 13.89)(5.04)

13.86 22.37 36.23

SetoutbelowaletIrecaIryilrgaluoUlrtsofleaseliabilitjes(includedunderinterest.beaIiDgloalrSaudbo.'o'"@

Particulars 
As at As at

3l March 2024 3l March 2023

34.49 32.44

23.12 I Los
(r 7e) (0 26)

3.41 2.68

(17.75) (1r.42)

41.48 34.49

Cunerrt
Non-culrelt
Total

Cunent

Non-cuneut

Toaal

18.05

23.43

l2.ls
22.31

4t.4E 34..t9

The eff€ctiye inter€st rate for Iease liabilities is behveen 6.5% to 7.5%, with rnaturi$'in 2028-29.

Set out below are the canying amounts oflease receivables and the rnovetuents during the period

Particulars

Opening balance

Accretion ofintercst
Collection

Closing balance

As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

5.'74

0.41

( L67)

6.91

049
6(r t(l

4.48 5.74

1.55

2.93

1.55

4 19

4-44 5. 1A

The following are the amounts recognis€d in statement of profit or loss;

Particulars

Depreciation clmrge for right-of-use assets

- Building

- Vehicles

lnterest expense on lease liabilities
lnteresl income on lease receivables
(Gain/Loss or derecognitior of leases

Expense relatiDg to shofi-tem leases

Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss

As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l Merch 2023

5.04

8.84

3.41

(041)
(0.04)

5.07

3.39

2.68

(0.49)

(0.05)

3.01

+

o)

\ndus

o

o lertlrd

ot

20.40 t3.6t



CNH lndurriil cilpiirl (lndi!) Prhlrc Limiled
N.k\ turnring Irn orfinnnclil \tntcn.nt fi,rlhe rc.r cnded 3l Mlrch :l)11

t-lllnnu"ilil\aN tu lilUte! \hlhors a.t@tt shot" datu utld nl.s otha\w,etrkl)

'IlEnrnrDrlrnx)unlnnd the triler.sr duc ltrc,ln! rcilrJrnrp unDnrd !' rn\ rurfb{ .t lh. drddl (!ch..rouxn! \rilr
- 1'rnrilrl.nrnd dutr, Drcro.nJ smrll cDlcDrsci 0 0l r) {$

Itrlcrrsl on lhc Drnr.iDrl.rnntril du( Nr Nt

'nre nilnurl ol iil.r.sl Fd b\ Sc bu\cr n lcnN of s.cboD l8 ol thc trtc'o- silHll iild MrdntrD liil.Irrs.s I)elelopnrLnl 4.1. 2lr(16.

ilkrE sru lhc {m.uil ollhc F\nreDl nradc ft, lhr $Uphcrb.lonJthc.pFnreddn}dnngexchncroutrn!}cil Nil Ni

- l)ilnNil$ill.ilrhsurDhe[b$ondilr.nDnouil.ddilc
- ln(r'n,'n lhu Dnn(nr.il nilt^unl

l-hcinonnLofnlcrcrdncnnd p.rdbl! hr&c Nn.d oldchrnr nrdlnrg trun.nr t\hictr haskeD tatd b{l h\oDd UrcJtNrnlcddd! dtnn! lhc

\.rr, b[ \idr{il ildduu lhc 
'illcr.sl 

stccjlied undd ilrc MNo. Strull .nd M.dMn liilqus$ ])c\clryr$l Acl,2l)0(,
Nil Nr

'l_h! rnrnil ol nil.rcsl r.cncd aDd r.nrilnrir! ilDnild allh..nd.lcrcfi ac(ilnnru \.Jr Nil Ni

11! nnFunt ol- liiltrcr incrcsl rdnii$! duc id D.\rIIc cv.n nr {t' rr.uNdnu \crrs. Ntl su!t (UlL \lcn lt. icrcs iucs ils\r 11

McdNn liilcqmscs l)c\ rlrpr.nl  cl. 2rr06
Nrl Ni

2.31 Dilclnrur$ nluired ilnd.r lh( [ti.ro, Snrll lnd Mdium EnhrtrL.r Do.lotnrcnl Acl. 21106 (ilSMED Aci) nrc gh (n ns f.lktrr

2-32 OD.roling ScgDCns

l.i3 Unlodgcd ror.isn.urr.nq

3l Mrrch:01{ ll M[.h 10:3

0 tl

2.3{ hl V{lu.
vrlurlion Princitle\

llrncral nrstrmrcnts tuc rhsiilicd bilscd otr { hrc'!t!l! ol \rh')loil tcehilqu.s

Frir \'aluc offinlnciul insrun(nlr $hirh !r. n.r mu\und r( Filir Vilu(:
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) PriYate Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the 1'ear ended 31 March 2024

(Al! amounts are in Rupees I'lillions excepl slure data and unless othetlise sturcd)

2.35 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities as at 3l March 2024

Particulars
\t ithin l2
months

After 12

months
'fotal

Assets
Financial assets

a) Cash and caslt equivalents

b) Receivables

il Trade leceivables

ii) Other receivables

c) Loans

d) Other Financial asscts

Non-financial assets

a) Non Cun'ent tax assets (uet)

b) Deferred tax assets (net)

c) Propertl'. plant and equipmerrt

d) Other lntarrgible assets

e) Other non-firalcial assels

qat.76

45.20

16.32

9.582.83

|.13

67.88

7-569.'10

6.46

148.00

364.84

36.45

23.32

901.76

45.20

t6.32

t7 "152.23
8. l9

148.00

364.84

36.45

23.32
67.88

'l'otal Assets 10.615.72 8.148.47 18.164.19

Liabilities
F inancial liabilities

a) Payables

i) Other Payables

- Total outstanding dues of nricro elllerprises and srnall enterprises

- Total dues olcreditots olher than nricto entetp:'ises arid snrall enterprises

blDebt seeurities

c) Bon'ouings (Othcl than Debt Securities)

d) Other fiuancial liabilities

Non-fi nancial liabilities
a) Current tax liabilities (net)

b) Provisions

c ) Other rlon-ilnalcial liabilities

0.01

78.80

t.47 4.61

6.563.48

709. l 5

43.89

0.85

I 1.28

4.903.50

23.67

29.25

0.0,

78.80

t -474.61

I r.466.98
'732.82

43.89

30.t0
I 1.28

Tatal l,iabilitics 8,882.07 4,956.42 13.838.49

NEW DELHI
**



CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 3l Nlalch 2023

tAll antotrttts are in Rupees Millions excepl slnre duta and wiless olltenrise stated)

2.35 N,laturity analysis ofassets and liabilities as at 3l Nlarch 2023

Particulars
\f ithin 1 2

mcnths
Alter l2
nronths

Total

Assets
Financial assets

a) Cash and cash equivaients

b) Derivative llnancial instnunents

c ) Receivables

i) Tlade leceivables

ii) Other receivable s

d) Loans

e) Other Financia'l assets

Non-financial assets

a) Non Cu|rent tax assets (net i
b) Defered tax assets (nel)

c) Pr"opelty. plant and equipntent

d) lntangible assets under dcvelopurent

e) Other Intangible assets
1l Othel non-fiuancial assets

566.60

126.42

55.30

a.99

10.560.38

1.55

56.69

7"037.88

7.48

1,18.00

r3"r.89

29.2t

38.05
0. l7

566.60

126.42

-(5.30
0.99

l 7.598.26
9.03

118.00
;t34.89

29.21

i8.05
56.86

Total ;lssets r r.367.93 7.695.68 l9,06J.61

L,iabilities
Finrrncial lirbilitics

a) f)erivative fi nancial instn"rments

b) Pa)ables

i)Other Pllablcs
* -fotal outstanding dr"res o1-rrricro cntetprises and snrall etrtetpt'ises

- Total dues olcredilors other than ntiero enlctpriscs and srrall enlerpt'ises

c) Debt seculities

di Bonnrvirrgs (Other than Debt Scculities)

e) Other financial liabilities

Non-fi nancial liabilities
a) Provisions

b) Otber non-lirancial liabilitics

0. 1-8

92.s]

8,995.09

682...10

$.76

t].46

.:1.876.12

22.56

26.4'I

0..{ 8

92.5'l

13.87 r .21

7A4.96

26.83

11.46

Total Liabilities 9.788.76 -1.92-1.75 l4-713.51

NEW DELHI
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C^-H Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Linrited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(.'1ll unouils drc in llupccs,\lilliu$ *.e])l shdrc duld dnd ilnlcss olhcnrisc stdl&l)

2,36 CapitalManag€ment

llet of intangible assets

The Conrpary's objeclir es rvher nranagiDg capital are to:
- safegmrd its abilitv to coilinue as going concern, so that it can continue to pro|ide retuns for sharelrolders and benefits for other stakeholders and

requirements o!er lhe reported period

are uder constant revierv bv the Board.

Particularc As at 3l l\larch As at 3l l\tarch

ie,.,, +h-
Net Worth 4.o2510 {.t50 I 0

Debt to N€t Worth (in tinrcs) 2,63 3.19

2.36 (i) RegulatorT Capital

Tier I capital, i:rcludes prel'ereDce slrare, qualil.r,ing as subordinated liabilities and pror ision for expected credit Joss oI stage I asscts.

Tier I Capital

Equity shae capital

Free Reserles

Deductions:

-lDtarrgibles assets

-Del'erred tax

-Prepaid expenses

Tier 2 Capital
Provisiou tbr expected credit
loss oD stage I assets

Total Regulatory C.pital
Risk weighted assets

Capital to Risk rveighted asset ratio (CR.{R) (tZ,)

CRAR Tier I Capital (%')

CRAR Tier 2 Capital (ol,)

Liquidity Coveragc ratio

As at 3l l\larch As at 3l i\lrrch
2021 2023
3.97:.00 3,972.00

953.70 3'71.5'7

(13.32)

(164.84)
(8. I 4)

(38 05)

(.Itu 7l)
(13 95)

4 519,10 t,8t4 86

tto li

,t,7.19.83

17,63,1.s3

26.93"1'

25.68'1,

|.25'n,

n-A

4,050.33

I 8.037.81

22.45%,

2t.20nA

1.25.1,

N,4

2.36 (ii) .\nalytical Ratios

Ratio Num erator Denonrinator Current period Preyious period 7n \rariance
Reason for
variance (if
ahor'€ 25Y")

Captal to Risk \\'eighted flsset

ratio (CRAR) (qi')
4,749.82 I 7,634.53 26,93'/o 22.45"1, 4.48't, NA

CR-AR Tier I Carrtal (o/b) 4.529.39 t 7-634_5-3 25,64i1, 21.20'1, 4.44o NA
CRA.R Tier: Capital (%) 220.43 r 7.634.53 1.250/o 1.25v. o.no%, NA

l-iouidilv Coveraue ratio NA NA NA NA NA NA

2.36 (iii) Capital allocation

CornparN Asset and Liability Managerrent Comnittee (ALCO)

activities. it is not the sole basis used for decision naking. .Account is aiso taken of syncrgics rvith other and activities. the avaiJabilitv of nranagenrenl and other

resources, ard the fit of the longer-tenn strategic activities The respect of capital managelreDl ard allocation are reviewed

'*
i:

_t
cr

c)

regularly b1, the Board of

I

t

tp



CNH Itrdustrial Capitsl (lndia) Private Linrited
Notes fornring llart offinancinl statemetrts for the yerr cndcd 3l lvarch 2024

/All uDtoilnts drc in llupcer ,\lillion.\ erc'cl)t shu c dutu tuxl nnlass othcr\'irc \ldktl)

2,37 Finailcial risk management obj€(fives rnd policies

company's Principal llnancial assets include Ioans and cash and cash equivaleDts thal derir,e ciirectly f'tont its operatiotrs.

rnarket isk and credit risk related to our financint aclivilies

Liquiditl risk

continuouslyntoniloringforecastandacNalcashflo\\'s,andb) nratchingthernaturit) profilcsofllnancialassetsaDdIiabilities

The table beloR summarises o1'lhe s financial liabilities based on corlmciual undiscounted

l\larket risk

Conrpanl"s exposure to ntarket risk is described belorvl

lilter€st rate risk

the Compan) is not exposed to lnlerest Rale llisk

Pr(payme[t risk

pa]1nenl by the customer.

Forcign currcncJ risk

expressed in INR is as follows:

Partirillars {( al t!r11 h.;l 1l}?{ ,l\ rt Mrr.h 31. :{}:J
INR tl&

lledpcd
F ('IJ i 5.18 ot,

Deri\ ali\ r" I rto 5-l

* represents the notiotral amount oflhe dcrivativc linancral insltument.

Crcdit risk

from thc Company's loan assets

price credit risks.

*

o
o

_t
C'

a
il

Pflrtirulrrs Note No. Carrying t alue Less than I ]eir I to 5 years > 5 )ears Tolal

Year endcd Jl March 202{
Other payable

Debt Secuities
BorrowiDgs (Other lhan debt secruitics)

Other fi nancial liabilities

l. t0
I tl
1.t2
2.r3

78.8 I

1.174.61

I l-466.98
132 82

78.81

l.-17.1 (,1

6,563.48

709. I 5

.{,903.50

23 6'l

78.8 I

1.47-{.61

I 1.466.98

13.153.22 8.826.05 1-921.11 13,153.22

\'(ar ended 3l March 2023

Other payable

tsorro\ylngs (Other lhan clebt securities)

Other fi nancial liabilities

l.r0
)12
? ll

93 05

l3.s7r.lr
?0196

s3 05

S,995.0!)

681.40

.1.376. l2
2:.56

9i 05

13.371:l
704.96

11,669.22 9.110.51 J.898-68 | 4.669.22

c/ (e
JPI.I



CNH hdrstrial Capital (lndia) Pilvate Limited

Not6 forming parl of financial sfatements for the year ended 3l Merch 2024

(All anomts arc in Rrrpecs A4illion.s except sharc data and unlcss othenise slated)

11e followiDg nble provides irrfomtation about the exposure 10 credit risk and expected credit loss for loan asses and cash and c^sh equi\"lents:

| ) Loan assets

P{rtic{laN Cross cartyitrg \\'eighted averrge Loan allowanc€ Whether credit
amouila loss rete inrpailed

As al 3l lllarch 2024

Slage I

Stage 2

Slage 3

As at 3l luarch 2023

Shge I

Shge 2

Shge 3

15.725.74

1.360.60

2,1 18.83

|.960/o

2.65%

59.59o/o

I 6.004.9-l

?88.60

1,602.32

r.93%

3.270/r

56.20Vo

3 r 7.38

25.81

900.43

No

No

Yes

18.395.Es 1,243.62

308.r 0

36.1 I

1.262.'10

No

No

Yes

19.205.11

Financifll instruments and cash deIosils

Analysis of risk concentration
The Company's concentrations ofrisks are managed by clienVcounterpartv based on Loan to Value (LTV) segregation-

the fiilance amount to fail value ofcollateral at the time oforigination ofloans:

As at 3l Mtrrch 2024

Rerail l,orns
Total

Less 923.49

9,990.79

1,12t.20
471.68

958

32.\2
1,153.09

8.69

961.53

I 1.615.56

1.139.47
5l -90o/o

9t-100%
Total 12,035.48 493.18 r-193.90 13.722.K

Comnrercial Finance

LTV Ratio St{se I Stage 2 Stece 3 Total

9 t -1 000/0

Total

-1,969.45 295.42 408.42 4-6'73.29

3,969.45 295.42 404.42 4.613,29

As at 3l ilIerch 202f,

Roteil l,oans
LTV Ratio Stase I Stase 2 Strsp 3 Total

Less than 5070

5 t-90%
9t-100%
Tot.l

898.4't

9.656.84

472.37

9.04

6t2.45
2.59

38.45

1.629.46

29 0q

945.96

I 1.898.75

904 05

lt.421.68 624.O8 l-697.OO t3-144.76

Commerrid Finanre
Lry Ratio Staee I Stase 2 Toral

9l-I00o/b

Totnl

4,298.06 736.52 421.83 5,4s6.41

4.29E.0,6 736,52 a2t,Aa 5.456.41

Change in gross carrying vahre of loan assets consists of the following:

Retail Loans
Loan Assels Slase I St{ee 2 'l'oral

Balance as at I April 202:

Nerv financial assets acquired / originated

Transfer 10 Skge I

Transfer to Shge 2

TraDsfer to Shge 3

Assets derecognised or repaid

Bahnce es et 3l Marrh 2023

New finarcial assets acquired / originated

Transfer lo Stage I

Transfer to Shge 2

Transfer to Skge 3

Assets derecognised or repaid

Balnnce as al 3l M{mh 2024

I t.686.81

5.962.s2

347.49

(468.s8)

(798.r9)

(s,302.38)

1,406.o9 I,568.32

(92.61)

(40.41],

1.475.19

14.662.13

5.962.52

(2s4.88)

508.99

(677.00) 000

(360.02) (1,213.49) (6.87s.89)

11,421.68

7,029.42

93.92.

(348.53)

(53s.25)

(5.63 L76)

624.O4

(56.36)

391.74

(160 76)

(305.52)

1,697.00 13,744,76

'1,029.42

(37.s6)

(43.21)

6q6.01

0.1r8.34) (7.05s.62)

I

DELH\
NE\I'J *
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CNH lndustrial Capital (lndia) Pri\'flte Limited
Notes fornr ing part of financial statenenfs for the ! ear elded 3 I llarch 2024

(All anonilts arc iil Ililpca.t.\Iillions e\e|t slMk'data dild iltllcs.\ otltttirc shlt.Ll)

Commercill Financc
2

Balance as at I April 1022

Nerv financial assets acquired / originaled

Transf'er to Stage I

Transfer to Stage 2

Transl'er to Stage 3

Assets derecognised or repaid

Balance as at 3l l\farch 2023

Nerv financial assets acquired / originated

Transfer to Stage I

Transl'er to Stage l
Transf'er to Stage 3

Assels derecognisecl or repaid

Brlance rs at 3l llarch 202,1

3,762 6t
28.69'1.94

122.43

(.130.15)

(2t7.t4l
(27.6.17.63)

480.: I 430.87

(5s.i7)
(.r9.s8)

4t5.4 )

(3 l 9.50)

4.673.69

23.697.94

{67.06)

4'19.'13

( r 98.27)

4t.9t (t7.9t5.:2)
.1,298.06

469.24

(37r.61)

(2r003)
(29.92r.51)

736.52 421.83

( r 6,1.59)

fi 1.69)

483.97

(.i t9. l0)

5,456.41

:9.705.3 I

(i04 65)

385.31

(273.94)

1247.821 {.t0.488.41)

I A6q J{ 295.42 {08.,t2 1,673.29

Change in e\peclcd credit loss on loan nssefs consisls ofthe follo$ing:

Retail Loans

Lonn Assets Slrse I Stace 2 Tolrl

Balance as at I April 2022

N-ew firancial assets acquired / originated

Transl'er to StalLe I

Transl'er to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage J

Assets derecognised or repaid

Balance as nt 3l I'larch 2023

Nerv financial assets acquired / otigiilated

Transf'er to Stage I

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Assets derecognised or repaid

Balance as nt 3l l\larch 2024

219.45

l:i8.08

49 98

( 1 1.78)

t49.0{:)

(7s.47)

(40.34)

(r8.7r)

75 60

85.82

54.63 I,010.8 I 1,294.89

r 38.08

(e 6,1)

30.49

(26.56)

(1909)

(0.00)

(8.76)

211.20

161 .91

2?4

(16.46)

(2'79.321

I43.7 4

29_83

(r l7)
I 8.50

(e6.43 )

't2.'16

I,r23.18

(0.87)

(:.04)

375.75

(73 r .1 s)

1,121.2t

r61 92

(5 r 4.65)

283.32 764.47 l-07I.J8

Commercial Finance

Balance as at 1 Aprll2O22

Neu financial assets acquired / originaled

Transf'er to Stage I

Transf'er to Stage f
Transfer to Stage J

Assels derecognised or tepaid

Balance as rt 3l Mnrch 2023

Ne\\'financial assets acquired / originaled

Transfer to Stage I

Transfer to Stage :
Traisf'er to Stage 3

Assels derecognised or repaid

Bilance as al 3l Ivlarch 2024

243.93

I 4.69

(:i.6s)

(2.60)

1247.65)

4. l0 I 52.55 I 88.36

1.1] 9l
(0 57)

I 0.6:

( l .69)

(6.18)

(14 1l)
(6.94)

4.29

3.74 (:50.0e)

36.90

151.50

29.87

(3. r 8)

( r.96)

(230.07)

6.28

(l 60)

12.13

\2.34)
( r0.95)

139.52 ta2.10

151.50

(2'1.2'1)

(8.95)

4.30

27.96 (:6i.06)

3,1.06 r35.56 112.14

Operational Risk

producls and business activitres.

management.

of internal arrdit.

Crl!t

f'r--u
C)
(Jt

o
c)
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CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part offinancisl statemcnfs for thc ycar cnded 3l March 202.1

(All unounts.trc iil llttpccs '\lilliofi.\ er(apl shn'c dulu tuil iln165 ollrcrtrisc sl.tlad)

2.3E Summarl of Financial assets and liabilities thich arc rccognised at arnortiscd cost

Partirulnrs As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Fiuanei:rl :rssels

( arsh anci crsli e(iri\ iiierlis
Trade recr'ira[rl<s

Otlrer rr'ceir ables

Loans

Oliie: lhiircial assets

90 I .76

45.20

16.32

l'1.152.23

8.lq

s66.60

55.30

0.9q

t'7,s98.26

9.03

'iot asstls

Fiilanrial li,lbililics
Pavrbies

i)ebt seruritics
Bolonrr:ls ((lthcr t!iD Debt Secnriires)

Other ilrarcrai habiiilres

78.80

t.474.6t
I 1.466.98

732.82

r8,230.18

93.05

r3.871.21
'704 96

-l ot*l l'inaneial 14,669.22

2.39 Contingcnl Liability

docunerl.

\,larch 1013.

2.110'Ihereisnocapilalcorurihuentason3I N4arch202'1and3I l\jarch2023.

1988 t:15 of 1988) and rules made lhersunder.

(ii)Thecompar)isno1a$ilfuldefaulterasdeclaed blan1'balkorfinancialInstitutionorail\'olherlendcr.

(i\ ) Tltere are no charges or SatisfactioD )'et 1o be regislered witlt Registrat ofConrpanies (ROC1 belolcl the statulory period.

the I ncotre Tax Act. I 96 I ( such us, search or surveyor any other relevaut prol isiotrs of the lDconle Tax Act. I 96 I ).

(\'i ) ll]e conrpaD! has not lraded or invested in Cqpto CrnTencI or \iirlilal Currency duriug the year.

(\,ii) Utilisatior o1'borro$ed lirtds

business, rvhich is conducted ensuring adhereuce to all regulatory requilellents.

IiuldiDg pany ( Ultimate beneficiaries ) or provide anl' guaranlee. security or the like on behalfofthe ultimate beneficiaries.

f0l3), either severally or.lointll,rvith an)'other person that are:

(a) Repayable on clemard: or

(b) sithout specil\'ing ar.v tcurrs or pedod ofrepaynert

(Reshiction on DuDber ofLayers) Rules, 20 I 7.

efl'ectile.

Deposit takilg Compaly (Reserve Bilk) Dilections, 20 I 6 given in Annexure A forming part ofthese financial statements.

CiV*

.--l
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CNH lndustrial Cnpitd (Indir) Privnte Limiled

Noles to the finrnciol statements for the yesr ended 3l March 2024

(All aDnunt! ott rh )lillr!^ Mtllton: *ccpt sharc dolo ond rnlcss otht nr^( s@t.d)

2.4.1 (a) The disalos{res as required by lhe NBFC IUaster Direclions issued by RBI are as follorvs:

i. C{pital fuDds, risk assets/ erposure and risk asset ratio (CRAR)

(i) CRAR (%)

(ii) CRAR - Ticr I capiul (%)

('ri) CRAR - Ticr II capital (9i,)

(i\') .Anroul1 ofsubodinalcd dcbt 
'?iscd 

as Ticr-ll capit.l

(r ) ArDounl raised b\ issuc ofpcrpclual Dcbl instruDrcnls

Year ended

3l Nrrch 2024

Year ended

3l March 2023

16.93,/"

25.68%

1.25%

21 20"/.

I 25'/,,

CRA,R as at 3l March 2024 (P.Y. ll March f02i). has bccn dctcrrnined in accordanc!: \\ith thc RBI Maslcr Dircctions r.ad \\ilh RBI nol'ficarioD RBI/2(Il9-
20/170-DOR(NBFC).CC.PD No l{)9/22.1(r.106/2{)19-20 darcd ll N4arch 2020 on impl.mcnlalion oflndian Accoutrling SlaDdads.

ii The Coilrpm\ hs nol nradc o[ inrcstncnls drriD-q dlc icxrcndcd 3 I March ]01-l $d 3 I N4ctth 1023.

iii Hedging nctirities and derirntiles

culfcnc\ risk.

Derira(ir€s designaled as hedging inslruments

Cash flos hedges

undcrl!ir)grisloftbcCrossCunarc\S\\rpcortnctsxrcidctrticallothchcdgcdnskcolnponcnts.

Cross Currency Suap Agreemeill

Thc notional pnncipal ofs\\ap agrecnrcnls _ 1.120.5+

Lossus \ hich \ould bc incuncd ifcounlcrpanics fiilcd 1o firlfill thcir obligations undcr thc agrecmcnts

CollocmJ required br rhc applrcrblc NBFc u|orr irlcriilg into srnps
Concentmtron ofcredrt isl insins f'orn lh( ssaps _

Thcfairvalucofthcs$apbook - I-i-ltl.90

ExchAnge lraded iilerest rxtt deth atires
Thc Conrpan) htr Dot trfldcd iil c\chillgc l-adcd inlcrcsl mlc dcri\ atilc duing lhc curcnt and prc\ ious )car

Disclosnres on risk exposure in derilatives

Qunlita(ive disclosur€

S\ap contracls arc idlntical lo thc hcdgcd risl couponcnts

Ouantitalive disclostrre as al Jl Manch 2024

Paniculars Currency Derilatives lnterest Rate

(ii) Markcd to Markct Positions
(a) Asscts
(b) Liabilil\

(ii) Crcdit E\posurc
(ii) Unhcdgcd E\posurcs

QuAntilAtive disclosure .s tl J1 Mrrch 2023

Pailiculars Crtrency Derilaliyes Inler€st Rate
Derivetives

(i) Dcri\ariYos (Notional Principal ANouill)
(ii) I\tailcd ro Maldct Positions

(a) Asscts
(b) Liabilit\

(ii) Crcdil E\posurc
(ii) Unhodged E\posures

I 42{) iJ

c,!

J

C)
o'
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CNH Indtrstrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited

Notcs to (he financirl statenrents for the lear ended 3l l\'lflrch 2024

/All dilkililil! dr. in llupccs )lillions ettcltt slnn'data untl tnlcss othctarisc statL'd)

ir Secrritisalion and assignncnt
a) There are no securilisation and assigrlrnent transacti on enter ed inlo bv the Cornpany du rinq lhe vear ended 3 1 \4arch 101.1 and .i I March 20ll.

vii Financing ofpareilt conlpan) producls

parent conrpany.

liii Details of Single Borroner Limit (SGL) / Group Borro\\'er Limit (CBL)

The Cornpany has rrot e\ceeded 1 lre prudential exposure lilnits dur ing the I ear ended I I Nlarch l0l,l and I I \4arch l0l 3

ir Unsecured advances

a) Thc Conrpanv has nol provided anv unsecured adlances as at I I l\{arch l0l4 and i I \'larch l():i 10 the borrowers

v Thereisnoexposuretorealslatesectorb)theCornpanl'drtringthel'earended-1lN'larch:0:-landlll\'larchl0l3.

vi There is no exposut e to capital rnarkel durillg the }ear ended 3 l \4arch l0l4 and 3 l \'larch foli.

r The Company does Dol have regish atioD \\'ilh an)' olher 1'rnancial seclor reculalor

in Rs.

P{rlictrlars Year ended Year ended
31 lVlarch 2023

Break rrn of'Itrovisioils rild.ontinsencies'shosn under the hefld crDeildiltrre in Slntenrcnl ofProfit and Lors
Inrnair rnent offrnancral rnstrrrrenl al arrrorlised cost

- l.oans and other 1'rnancial assels t? ll

Provision thr douhtirl debrs {nerl 0 t9
P,ovision rnade touards Irrcorne tar rnelrrdinc dcfierc,l tax t9'12 l0 5i

xYii Drawdown fron resen'es
There lrcs been no drau do\\r fionr reservcs clnrins the frnancral vear ended 3 1 Nlarch 2024 and i I l\4arch :02i.

ri Disclosrre ofpcnaltics imDosed bI RBI nnd olher regulators

There has been no penalty inrposed by RBI and other regul ators durins the financial 1,ear ended 3 J \4arch f0:-1 and 3 I [4 arch ]0ll.

rii Detailolratingsassignedbvcredrtratingagenciesarrdnrigrationofratingsdurirr,qthercar

Nanre ofthe ruting 
^gencl'

Year endcd
tl Mqrnh 2O7d

'l'ear ended
3l trlrrch 2023

CRISII l-rnlired {Corrrmercial Paner} Criqil 4l+ Cris'l .{l+
l ndia Ratinps rnd Research l lnd-Ra) {a onrnrercral Paoer ) IND A IT IND A]+

requireneut of lnd AS.

rir' Reverue recognition

1013.

Provisions nnd contiilgcncics

\r'i Relnfed parfl lr^nsaclions

executi\'e direclors.

NEW DELHI
t*

b
o)

t
C)

d

ot|d /



CNH Industrirl Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March2024

(All amounts are in Rupees Millions except share data and unless olherwise staled)

xviii Asset liability management maturit-v pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

(previous year figurcs is shown in bracket)
*Advances comprisc loan receivable after rretting offofdelerred operating income / expenses and impairment provision for Stage 3

$ excludes assets/liabilities not related to financing activitir:s

6d Stage 3 loans have been classified under the buckel ofover 3 ycars and upto 5 ycars.

mount in Rs.

t

(-)

t.294.16
( I .387. l2)

(-)

(-)

Total

(- )

t.749 54

0.794.24)

(-)

8.27
( r 1.001

(-)

(-)

(t

(-)

Over 5

Years

Over 3
Years and

upto 5 Years
A)

(-)

191.55
,r78.97',

(-)

52.24
(lls.72\

(-)

(-)

(-)

(-)

0ver I Year
and upto 3

Years

(-)

574.35
(558.61l

(-)

438. I I

(37 1.88)

(-)

249.55
(3 16.48)

(-)

(-)

Over 6

months and
rupto I Year

(-)

251.83
(264.26)

Ol'er 3
months and

upto 6

months

(-)

382. I 5

4t0.92)

(-)

179.00

( 148.95 )

(t

(-)

C)ver 2
months upto

3 months

(-)

t87.22
(208.891

(-)

192.30

(99.r5)

(-)

(-)

(-)

46 92
(225.96)

( -)

( -)

Ovcr I
month upto
2 months

(-)

74.49
(86.s0)

(-l

36.55
(.i 1.70)

(-)

136 04
( 108.98)

(-)

(-)

l5 da;-s to
30/31 days

8 to 14 davs

(-)

3.00
( 7.48)

(-)

(-)

(-)

(-l

I to 7 days

(-)

40. r3
(35.9 r )

(-)

(-)

(-)

(-)

Particulars

Deposits

Advances+

Investments

Borrorvings

Foreign currencl, assets$

F-oreign cunenc-v liabilities $

NEW DELHI
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xix Concentration ofAdvances*

xx

*Advances represents loan receivables (excludes tlte

Concentration of Exposures*

CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited

Notes to the financial stat€m€nts for th€ year end€d 3l March 2024

(All anounts are iil Rupees Millioils ercepl share dflta and uilless otherfise stated)

offofdefened operating incorne / expenses)

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

*Exposures represents loan rcceivables (excludes the netting offofdeferred opemting incotne / expenses)

xxi Concentration ofNPAS

Particulars As at
3l March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Total exposure* to loD four NPA accounts 14.79 9.94

*exposure above cornprises ofloan receivables (excludes the netting offofdefened operating incotne / expenses)

xxii Sector-*ise NPAs

Percentag€ ofN*PAs to total advances in that s€ctor

Note: Advances cornprise loan receivable
+ wholesale and retail lending ofagricultural and comrnercial equipments (including to cotporate bonowers) is also included here.

xxiii l\,lovem€nt of NPAS

Note: Net advances comprise loan receivable reduced by Impainnent on loan receivables on Stage 3. Further. the aboYe lnovement is lor Stage 3 loans.

xxtv Ov€rseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The Company does not have any overseas assets.

Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
March 2024 and 3l Marclr 2023

('r-u
t

As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Particulars

I 86.20 154.47Total advances to twenty largest bonowers
'7 9)o/.pempntroe nfadvences to tuentu lAroest honowers 10 total advances offhe NBFC 9.9701

Particulars As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Total exposure to hventy largest bonowers/custolnen I 86.20 154.47

Percentage ofexposures to twenty largest boroweN/custolners to total exposures ofthe NBFC on

botrowers / custolners

9.97% '1.92o/o

Sector

As at
3l March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

L Agriculture & allied activities

2. MSME

3. Corporate bonowers

4, Sen ices

5. Unsecured personal loans

6. Auto loans* 8."t to/o 1t.03%

7. Other personal loans

Particulars As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

(i) Net NPAS to Net Advances (Yo) 4.01o/a 4.77V"

(ii) Movement of NPAS ( Gross)

(a) Opening balance 2l r .88 199.92

(b) Additions during the year 97.75 136.26

(c ) Reductions during the year (149.40) ( 1 24.30)

(d) Closins balance 160.23 2 t 1.88

(iii) Movement of net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 8s.6 I 82.59

(b) Additions during the year 43.1 8 53.42

(c ) Reductions during the year (58.60) (50.40)

(d) Closing balance 70.19 85.61

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs

(a) Opening balance t26.2'7 I I 7.33

(b) Additions during the year s4.5'1 82.84

(c ) Write off/ Write back olexcess provisions (90.80) (73.90)

(d) Closing balance 90.04 126.27

NEW DELHI
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CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Linited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l March 202J

(All LrDtoiltlts drc in l?tqccs Millioils cxcepl shttre tlalu antl unlass uhentise staladl

Disclosure of complaints
There n ere no conrplaints receiled bv the Companl, during the year ended 3 I N4arch 202-l and 3 I l\4arch 2023

Disclosure ofralue ofimporas on CIF bnsis

The Company has not imported ar),goods lherefore r,alue ofirrports on CIF basis is Nil. (As on 3 I N'larch 2023 - Nil).

r\vt

IIVII

2.{J (b) Disclosures as required for liquidi$ risk

i Funding concentration based on significant counterpalt)* (both borrorvings and deposits)

Particulars

\urrrber of sigri fi canl coilillerparlies

Arnount
Percentage olfunding concentration to lotal deposits

Percentage offunding concentratior to total liabilities

Paraiculars

Total amourt oftop 20 deposits

Percertage ofamourt oftop 20 deposits to total deposits

iii Top l0 borrorvings

Particulars

Total aorount oftop l0 bororvings

Percentage ofamount ol'top l0 borrorrings to total borou'iugs

l-unding concentration based on significant instnrment / product*

Particulars
Conrnrercial paper

Exterral Comrnercial Borrowing (ECB)*

Loar from lrarks
* c\lcrnal cornDrcrcial borror ing has bccn rcpaid during thc \car

Particulars
Bond

Extemal Commercial BonoNing ( ECB)

Loan liorr barks

Particulars
Comnercial paper as a percentage oftotal public funds*

Corurrercial paper as a percentage oftotal liabilities

Corrrnrercial paper as a percentage oftotal assets

Other short tenn liabilities** as a percentage oflotal public lirnds

Other short term liabilities as a percentage oftotal liabilities

Other short terrr liabilities as a perceDtage oftotal assets

Non convertible debentures as a p€rcentage oftotal public fturds

Non convertible debertures as a percertage oflotal liabilities

Non convertible debertures as a percentage oftotal assets

*Significant counter?afty is as defined in RBI Circular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR. NBFC (PD) CC.No.l02103.10.001/2019-:0 dated 4 November 2019 or Liquidity
Risk \4anagemenl Franreu'ork for Non Banking Financial Companies and Core lrveshrrent Companies.

Top 20 large deposits (Amount in Rs. Crores)

I
1.294.t6

NA

93.520,i,

9

I.387. l2
NA

91.28%

As at 3l March 2024

NA

NA

NA

NA

-{s at 3l l{arch 202.1

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

.{s at 3l March 2023

As at 3l March 2023

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Percentage of total Iiabilities
r 0.660,.6

0.00ouo

82 86ci'

Percentagc of tofal liabilities
0.000,'o

l0.58oro

83 70on

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

-As at 3l March 2023
NA

NA

NA

27.260h

25.'.7jyo

19.8:lolo

NA

N_{

nNA

As at 3l Nlarch 2024

1.29't. l6
100.0%

As at 3l March 2023

I.387. I 2

100 00,'"

As at 3l March 2024
tJ7 46

l.146.70

As at 3l March 2023

t55.63

r.23 1.s0

*Significant inshurnent / product is as defined in RBI Cilcular RBI/2019-20/88 DOR. NBFC (PD) CC.No.l02103.10.001/2019-20 dated 4 Novernber 2019 on

Liquiditl,Risk l\lanagement Franrervork for Non Banking Financial Cornpanies and Core lnlestment CoDrpa[ies.

Stock mtio

As at 3l March 202{
I 1.39%

I 0.660/0

'7 .860/0

34.650/o

32.419',o

23.90Vi,

^vA
NA

NA

Conpil)' (Rescrve Batrk) Di!ection, 2016. as amended fiorn tirrre to time.

lease liabilities and Interest ,iee securit_y deposits).

lnstitutioral set up for liquidify risk management

Rcfer note no. 2.36 offinancial statements
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CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited
Notes to the financial statcments for the year ended 3l March 2024

(,411 annunls are in Rtpees Millions except slnre data and unless othe^t,ise storcd)

2.{5 Asset Classification as per RBI n*orms

2.,{6 Disclosur€s as rcquired b1'the RBI Notification no.RBll202l-72lll2 DOR.CRE,REC.No.60/03.10.00112021-22date<l22Orttoher2O2l

i) Corporate governance report containing composition and category of dircctors, sharehokling of non-cxecutive dircctors, etc.: ReI'er delails belorv

Name of Directors / KPM DIN Desisnation Date of Annointment lCate sorv of Directo Shareholdins
Vishal Chaudhurv 09463209 Managing Director 27 JanL:,a..'2022 lExecutile
Daniel Jarnes McTaggart 0't926746 Director 2l October 20 | 7 lNon-Executivc
Narinder Mrttal 07382202 Drrector I 0 Februarv 20li lNon-Executrve
Magneshwar Prasad Sirrsh 08241412 Director 26 .lune 201 9 l Non-Executive

Pankai Gupta t0432477 Direclor -3 I .lanuarv 2024 lExecutive

ii) Disclosurc on modified opinion, ifany, expressed by auditors, its impact on various financial items and views ofmanagement on audit qualifications: No

iii) Details on the ltems ofincome and expenditurc ofcxceptional nature: No exccptronal items

iv) Breach of covenant: There is no instance of breach of covenant on the borrowings and debt securities.

r,) Divergence in asset classification and provisioning above a certain threshold to be decided by the Reserve Bank: No, there was no signifrcant divergence rn

assel classi llcation and provisionin5r.

rt

n)J
c)
(c

Asset Classificafion as per RBI
Norms

Asset
classification as

per Ind AS 109

Gross Carrf ing
Amount as per lnd

AS

Loss Allon ances
(Provisions) as

required under Ind
AS 109

Net Carrying
Anrount

Proyisions
required as per
IRACP norms

Diffcrence
betn,een Ind AS
109 provisions

and IRACP
norms

I 2 3 1 5 6 7

Performins Assets

Standard Stage I 16.004.93 317 38 I -5.687.55 64.02 253 36

Stcge 2 788 60 25.8l 762.79 3. l5 22 66

Subtotal for standard r 6,793.53 343.1 9 16,450.34 67.17 276.02

Non-Performinq Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 t.342.37 662 60 619 78 t 34.21 528 36

Dor.rbtful - up to I vear Stase 3 197.37 180.97 t6 40 39.47 I 4l .50

I to 3 r,ears Stage 3 54.26 48 58 568 16 28 32.30

More tharr J vears Stage i 8.32 8.28 004 4.t6 4.12

Subtotal for doubtful 259.95 237.83 22.12 59.91 177.92

Loss Stage 3

Subtotal for NPA t.602.32 900.43 701.90 19,1,15 706.28

Other ilems such as guarantees, loan

corrl'nitnrents, etc. u4rich arc in the

scope of lnd AS I 09 but not covered

urrder currerrt Incorne Recognit ion.

Asset Classification arrd Plor':sionrng
(IRACP) norms

Stage I

Stage 2

Stage 3 4 16 412

Suhtotal 832 4.16 4.12

Total Stase I 16.004.93 I l7 .18 r5.687.55 64.0) 25i.36
Stage 2 788 60 25.8 1 762.79 3.15 22.66

Stase 3 |.602.32 900 43 701.90 194 l5 710 41

Totrl l8^395.8S 1.243.62 17.152.24 2(t1.32 986.43
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CNH Industrial Capital (India) Private Linited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 3l ]\larch 2024

(All unounts arc itt llupces )ttillions c.rcapt shurc dutu an(l utllcss otlrcw,ise slutad)

provided ior ir) the books ofaccounts. Compauy has subsequently apploached the lnsurance Conrpany to recover lhe losses.

Compant''s results ofoperations or financial conditions.

u,ere made and ensuriug tl)al the audir trail cannot be disabled.

dalabase level is nranaged by the service provider and not directlV accessible to the Contpany.

2..19 Previouslearfigureshasbeenre-gloupcdi reclassedtoconlilnthecunerltperiodclassifications,rvherevernecessary.

F-or S S Kofhari \Iehta & a'o. t,I-l
(--lrarlercd Acc0unlarls
iCAl Frrnr Rcsistraliotr I.Jo. 00(t756lJ N500.i.1I
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CNH Industrial Capital (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure A (forming part of the financial statements)

Notes for the year ended 3I March 2024

(.111 unruunt.s urc in lilpecs A4illions atcapl .tlrurc tlulu tnd ntles.t olhenrirc stulad)

(i) Funding concentration bascd on significant counterpafty

lntbrmation as required under Appendix I.ofRBI Circular "RBl/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No. 102/03.10.001 12019-20 dated 4 November 2019" paragraph l8 olthe RBI

lollou s:

t in Rs.

S.No. Particulars As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Amount
outstanding

Amount
overdue

Amount
outstanding

Amount
overdue

Liabilities sitle:
Loans and advances availed by the non-hanking financial company inclusive ofinterest
accrued fhereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures:

-Secured

-Unsecured*

(other than falling l'ithin the meaning of public deposits )

(b) Del'erred credils
(c) Term loans

(d) Inler-corporate loans and borrorving
(e) Comnrercial paper

(f) Public deposrts

(g) Other loans (please specify)

-Exlernal Comrnercial Borrora ings

-Bank overdraft

-lnt€rest accrued on bororvings ( including debt securities)
* reDresents bonds

105,246.16

t4.746.13

q lq1 14

30.53

I 23.042.5 8

l 5.389.05

280.53

2 Asset side: Amount outstan(ling

As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables {other than those included in (3) below}*:
(a) Secured

(b) Unsecured

I 83,958.54 r 92,05 I .70

J Break-up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities

(i) Lease assets including lease renlals under sundry debtors:

(a) Financial lease

(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed assets

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
(a) Loans u,here assels have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

As at
31 ]l{arch 2024

As at
3l March 2023

4 Break-up of investments

Current investments:
l. Quoted:

(i) Shares:

(a) Equily
(b) Preference

(ii ) Debentures and bonds
(iii) Units of mutual firnds

(i\,) Govemment securities
(r,) Others (please specify)

As at
3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023
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CNH lndustrial Capital (India) Private Limited

Annexure A (forming part of the financial statements)

Notes for the year ended 3l March 2024

(,-lll unuu?|,\ urc in lilpcet A,lilIions (rccpl shdra delu (nd unless otlrcrv'isa,rlulcd)

As at
1l Mqrnh )O?d

As at
11 lt{qrch 7O?1

Break-up of investments

2, tlnquotedl
(i) Shares:

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and bonds

(iii) Unils of mutual funds

(ir,) Govemment securities

(v) Others (please specify)

Long term inveslmcnts:

1. Quoted:
(i) Shares:

(a) Equity
(b)Preference

(ii) Debentures and bonds

(iii) Units ofmutual funds

(iv) Governnrent securities

(Y) Others (please speci!,)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares:

(a) Equity
(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and bonds

(iii) Units of mutual lunds
(i\,) Govemnlent securities
(v) Others (please specifv)

.{s at 3l March 2024 As at 3l March 2023

I J nsecuredSecured Unsecured Seculed

l 83.9s8.54

183,9s8.s4

r 9:.05 L70

r92,0s1.70

5 Borrower group wise classification ofassets financed as in (2) and (3) above* :

Category

I Related Panies:

2 Other than related panies

Total

* Gross ofexrrected credit Ioss provision on loans

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parties

As at 3l March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Book value
(net of

provision)

Market value/ Break
up or Fair value or

NAV

Book value
(net ofprovision)

Market value/

Break-up or Fair
value or NAV

6 In\iestor group wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and

securities (both quoted and unquot€d):

Category

Total

Related Parties:

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

(c) Other related parries

2 Other than related parties

.As at
31 lllqrch 2O2d

As at
3l Msrch 2023

21.187.75

8.561 .28

16,022.71

7.0 r 8.88

7 Other information
(i) Gross Non-Performinc Assels*

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

(ii) Net Non-Perfoming Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction ofdebts

*cross non o.rtg4@senls loans classilied as Stage 3 loaus. .r-'i1 -

*Nel non perfq;(ffi/assets rep-itftftts Gross Non Perfoming assels less net off ryfpgle!-bredllasspqovision thereon.
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